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Five-Year Financial Summary
_________________________________________________________________________

1999~ 1998~ 1997~ 1996~ 1995~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Revenues $914,880~ $1,005,007~ $1,095,625~ $1,065,806~ $1,097,978~
Nonrecurring operating charges 15,596~ 15,343~ 1,095~ 10,545~ 6,040~
Loss from operations (67,440) (100,998) (38,242) (52,556) (54,145)
Gains on sales of assets 11,505~ 112,533~ 4,858~ 11,173~ 6,493~
Loss from continuing operations (78,561) (    6,728) (53,490) (54,246) (45,348)
Discontinued operations (1) 6,984~ (  12,906) (16,747) (14,866) —~
Net loss (71,577) (  19,634) (70,237) (69,112) (45,348)
Net loss from continuing operations

per share, basic and diluted (^^1.60) (  ^^1.14) (^^1.11) (^^1.15) (^^1.98)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted (^^1.46) (  ^^1.41) (^^1.46) (^^1.46) (^^1.98)
Working capital 168,307~ 216,520~ 204,534~ 230,804~ 261,140~
Total assets 584,944~ 695,974~ 720,989~ 756,347~ 826,045~
Total debt 62,926~ 83,213~ 104,665~ 65,644~ 69,541~
Shareholders’ equity $276,700~ $1,355,332~ $1,368,783~ $1,447,263~ $1,504,064~

(1) On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. operating segment. Accordingly, the gain on sale as well as the results of operations 
for this operating segment have been classified as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations from the date of the
segment’s inception in January 1996 through the date of sale. VeriBest provided software design tools and services to the electronics design
automation market.  See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this annual report for a complete discussion of this
transaction and its impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial position.

Information contained in this report may include statements that are forward-looking as defined in Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Additional information concerning factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements is contained in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this Annual Report.

The Company

Intergraph Corporation, a pioneer of high-performance visual computing technology, is a worldwide

provider of technical solutions, systems integration, and services.  We offer technical, creative, and 

IT professionals a full range of software, consulting, services, and hardware for the open Windows NT

computing environment. Backed by 30 years of industry leadership, technology innovation, and a

global service infrastructure, Intergraph partners with customers around the world and in virtually

every industry to provide the powerful, integrated technical and business-critical solutions they need

to succeed. Intergraph believes in providing substantial value to customers by empowering their

enterprises with total solutions. We strive to deliver superior technology, top quality, and the 

industry’s best price/performance.
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I am joined in writing this letter by James F. Taylor, Intergraph's newly appointed CEO. Although new to this position, Jim has been with
Intergraph since the founding and is the architect of many of the software products that have distinguished Intergraph as a premier graphics
software company. Over the years, he has built a series of profitable business units within Intergraph, the latest being Intergraph Public Safety.
His entrepreneurial spirit, combined with his commitment to profitability, accountability, and return on investment for our shareholders, will
serve the Company well. I will continue as Chairman of the Board for Intergraph and for Z/I Imaging, and will also oversee the preparations for
our trial with Intel.

Review of 1999 

Intergraph's primary focus in 1999 was on these critical goals:

• Verticalize the company to solidify lines of profit-and-loss accountability and to give the businesses the structure they need to aggressively
pursue their markets. 

• Continue to profitably divest the Company of business units that were outside our primary market sectors. 

• Stem the financial losses in Intergraph Computer Systems.

• Maintain a sound balance sheet.

We made strides in each area, laying the foundation for a reinvigorated Intergraph. We have realigned operations to pursue markets in which
Intergraph is a global competitor and, in most cases, holds the No. 1 or No. 2 market share position. And we continue to practice the fiscal
discipline that enabled us to begin generating positive cash flow from operations in the fourth quarter.

Software and services for vertical markets 

Intergraph's focus going forward is on providing technical software, systems integration, and services to industries in which Intergraph is a
leading vendor. These include transportation, local and federal government, process plant design, utilities, communications, and public safety.
The divisions that serve these industries have streamlined their organizations, introduced powerful new families of products, made 
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breakthroughs in business-to-business service connections, and have begun to capture or recapture market share. These business units and
subsidiaries made a positive contribution to earnings in 1999.

In the pages that follow, we have described the business units in terms of the markets they address and provided market statistics that illus-
trate why we have put our R&D money and intellectual resources into these expanding markets. In all of these industries, we have open,
industry-standard products that enable our customers to acquire, share, and re-use design and mapping data over the Internet. These new
products – combined with Intergraph's core strength in providing technical services and global support – put Intergraph's vertical divisions in
an excellent position to answer the demand for decision support data delivered by way of the Web. In this new age of collaboration made
possible by the Internet, Intergraph's products bring an unparalleled level of support to large, complex projects where sharing data among
teams is critical.

Strategic divestitures

In keeping with our intention to focus on market sectors in which Intergraph is a leader, we have sold our VeriBest, ANA Tech, and InterCap
subsidiaries. The excellent products from these subsidiaries now complement the technologies of companies within their industries. 

Intergraph Computer Systems

Our hardware division, Intergraph Computer Systems, has been significantly impacted by Intel's punitive actions before and after we sued
them in late 1997. These actions impaired our ability to compete in the PC and generic server businesses, and hurt hardware sales in all our
business units. To stem the losses caused by the hardware-related revenue shortfall in 1999, we exited those businesses that had suffered the
most damage. These actions, in combination with stringent controls on expenses, enabled us to significantly reduce operating losses in
Intergraph Computer Systems. 

In addition, we are aggressively seeking partnering arrangements for Intergraph Computer Systems and Intense3D. Intergraph Computer
Systems specializes in high-end workstations, digital video products, and specialized servers for applications such as prepress. Intense3D
provides high-performance 3D graphics accelerators to a number of computer industry giants. The latest accelerator, the Wildcat 4110, is now
featured in new professional workstations from Compaq, Dell, Fujitsu Siemens, and IBM.

Update on the lawsuit against Intel

Throughout 1999, Intergraph gathered evidence and took depositions as part of our lawsuit against Intel. In October, the trial judge reversed
his earlier opinion that Intel does not have a license to use Intergraph's Clipper patents, and we have appealed the judge's reversal to the Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. We remain convinced that his original decision upholding our patent infringement case is correct, and that
our appeal will be granted. The trial is being delayed until after the Appeals Court rules on this critical patent issue.

Z/I Imaging

In October 1999, Z/I Imaging – our joint venture with Carl Zeiss – began consolidated worldwide operations. Z/I Imaging provides a complete
range of imaging solutions, including aerial cameras for mapping and reconnaissance applications, workstations, and software for image
processing and distribution. I am pleased to report that their first full quarter of operations was profitable. Z/I Imaging is an example of a
partnership that combines the leading products from two companies into a more complete solution, with significant benefits to customers,
shareholders, and employees. 

Outlook for the future

Although Intergraph is back on the right track, our turnaround job will not be complete until we have restored the company to sustained
profitability. That is our top priority, and we are committed to taking the actions necessary to ensure profitability. We will also focus on how we
can best ensure return on investment for our shareholders. Our vertical market focus enables both goals, as each business unit becomes more
nimble, self-reliant, and accountable for performance.

Jim Meadlock, Chairman of the Board 

James F. Taylor, Chief Executive Officer
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Intergraph Process & Building Solutions supplies
software and services to the process, power,
offshore, and marine industries. Building on more
than 20 years' industry experience as an engineer-
ing software provider, Process & Building Solutions
focuses on integrated life cycle solutions for the
design, construction, and operation of plants and
ships – with emphasis on engineering information
management and linking engineering systems with
business systems.

Building on success

According to industry analysts at Daratech Inc., 
for seven consecutive years, Intergraph Process &
Building Solutions has held the No. 1 position in the
3D plant design and visualization software market,
maintaining revenue leadership to capture 59% of
that $193 million market in 1999. We continued
building on that leadership position to expand
business opportunities in the plant life cycle
engineering market. This diversified market, which
according to ARC Advisory Group has an overall
value of $2 billion, encompasses new technologies
for creation, capture, and re-use of engineering
information, as well as services, such 
as improving clients' work processes and linking
disparate engineering and business systems. 

Process & Building Solutions' goal is to be the
leading, global partner for integrated life cycle
engineering for the process, power, offshore, and
marine industries. We plan to achieve this goal by:

• Focusing our business on life cycle engineering
solutions for plants and ships

• Advancing partnering efforts globally

• Embracing and developing new technologies,
such as The Engineering Framework 

• Introducing new solutions and products, such 
as SmartPlant® and GSCAD

• Providing effective consulting, training, and
support services 

• Providing technology for e-business and Web-
enabled engineering

Developing 
new technology

We are investing in the future by developing new
technology based on Microsoft’s open architectures
and the Internet. A good example is The
Engineering Framework, which provides a Web-
enabled, data-centric environment to manage
engineering information throughout the life cycle.
By using industry standards for the intelligent
exchange and storage of data, and the interpreta-
tion of that data within the engineering processes,
The Engineering Framework provides a common
and open electronic environment for supply chain
integration, promoting collaboration between
solution providers.

Alliances with 
other industry leaders

In 1999, Process & Building Solutions formed
alliances with Aspen Technologies Inc., debis
Systemhaus, Icarus Corporations, and ABB Utility
Automation to develop integrated life cycle
engineering solutions. Process & Building Solutions
also began working with SAP to extend the value
and functionality of respective solutions by
integrating technical and business systems. 

Intergraph solutions 
in major projects 
worldwide

During 1999, Process & Building Solutions also
signed a multi-year strategic global alliance agree-
ment with Raytheon Engineers & Constructors to
create new, mutual opportunities by building and
marketing solutions that maximize emerging 

"Intergraph Process & Building Solutions expects to strengthen its

leadership in the process, power, and marine industries by expanding

business opportunities in the life cycle engineering market. By providing

an enterprisewide Internet business strategy and an industry-standard

approach to life cycle integration, Process & Building Solutions is

uniquely positioned to be the major global supplier of integrated life

cycle engineering solutions. These solutions give clients a competitive

advantage by optimizing the value of their assets, such

as knowledgeable people and engineering know-how."

Dave Stinson 
Executive Vice President

Intergraph Process & Building Solutions 

Intergraph Process & Building
Solutions

4



technologies in the information technology (IT) and
business worlds. The agreement covers Raytheon
Engineers & Constructors' engineering offices and
projects worldwide. Other global agreements have
been signed with Mobil Corporation and Bechtel
Corporation.

SmartPlant and PDS 
had a good year

For 1999, Process & Building Solutions realized
consistently strong revenues from the Plant Design
System (PDS™) product line and enjoyed good
revenue growth from the new-generation
SmartPlant solutions. Intergraph released
SmartPlant P&ID, a data-centric, rule-based
software for creating intelligent piping and instru-
mentation diagrams. Featuring a comprehensive
data model, an engineering rulebase, a simple
user interface, and advanced integration capabili-
ties, SmartPlant P&ID significantly reduces design
time and increases accuracy. 

The data-centric foundation of SmartPlant P&ID
enables users to reduce redundant tasks and
integrate engineering data and design output. 

SmartSketch, SmartPlant
Review, and SmartPlant
Explorer 

Sales of Intergraph SmartSketch®, formerly sold 
as Imagineer Technical, continued to grow in
1999. In December, SmartSketch, a 2D precision
design, drafting, and diagramming tool, received
an Editors' Choice Award from CADENCE magazine,
the world's largest independent computer-aided
design publication. Customer Foster Wheeler USA
will use SmartSketch throughout its global
engineering offices for generating design deliver-
ables driven from spreadsheets, analytical
programs, and databases.

Intergraph also introduced SmartPlant Review,
software for interactively reviewing large, complex
3D models of process and power plants, and
SmartPlant Explorer 3.0, which is software for
Web-based data access, viewing, and reporting.

Leveraging engineering
information throughout
the life cycle

Businesses place great emphasis on leveraging
engineering information across the plant life cycle.
Statoil, on behalf of the Åsgard consortium, signed
a $2 million software and services contract with
Intergraph to create a comprehensive Plant
Information Management (PIM) system that will
deliver data and document management in real

time across the Statoil-operated $4.4 billion Åsgard
project in the Norwegian sector of the North Sea.

Spain's major oil, gas and chemical company,
Repsol, will use Directa, Intergraph's document
management solution, at six sites for life cycle
management of documents. Nova Chemicals of
Canada will use Directa at a Nova ethylene plant.
And engineering project house EMS has chosen
Directa as a drawing management system for the
Mozal Smelter project in Mozambique. 

Design tools for the next
generation of shipbuilding

During 1999, Intergraph, the technology provider
for LPD 17, and Avondale Industries Inc., the
project's prime contractor, announced that the first
unit of steel has been cut for LPD 17, the next
generation of U.S. Navy amphibious assault ships.
This milestone validates the use of computerized
design tools, including Intergraph's Integrated 

Ship Design & Production (ISDP) suite of shipbuild-
ing products. The use of ISDP technology is helping
the Navy achieve one of its goals of lowering total
ownership costs.

Intergraph – tasked with providing the computing
infrastructure for the engineering teams building
the LPD 17 – is part of the Avondale Alliance
which has been awarded the $641 million
contract. The Alliance is made up of Avondale
Industries, Inc., Bath Iron Works Corporation,
Intergraph Corporation, and Raytheon Corporation,
with 17 networked sites across the U.S.

Customer response to GSCAD – our next generation
shipbuilding solution – has been enthusiastic.
GSCAD is currently in production testing in
shipyards in Denmark and Korea.

1. Clean Fuels Project, Parsons Energy & Chemicals London. Part of detailed engineering 
development for Feed Effluent and Reactor area, approximately 60% complete. 

2. The Alba Northern Platform with the Floating Storage Unit. Chevron’s platform supervisors,
technicians and onshore engineers use Intergraph Directa for electronic access and management
of documents. Image courtesy of Chevron.

3. Black & Veatch engineers have reduced the hours required for piping and instrumentation design
by 20% and increased weekly production of isometric drawings by 800%, respectively. 
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Intergraph Government Solutions provides specially
developed software and hardware, commercial off-
the-shelf products (COTS), and professional services
to federal, state, and local governments worldwide.
Major markets include the branches of the U.S.
military, national departments of defense, national
mapping agencies, departments of transportation,
and state and local governments. Primary among
Intergraph's offerings are systems for mapping and
geographical information management, civil
engineering, environmental management, security,
and modeling and simulation, as well as integra-
tion services for logistics and financial management
systems. Intergraph also provides workstations that
have been ruggedized to withstand harsh environ-
mental conditions.

Intergraph Government Solutions is composed of
the following divisions:

Government Solutions  

The Government Solutions Division provides consult-
ing, information technology, and training services to
the U.S. military branches, Joint Commands, and
NASA, among many. 

Among major projects in 1999, Intergraph contin-
ued to support the Air Force Material Command
(AFMC) in the design and development of the Air
Force Depot Maintenance and Production Systems
(DMAPS). DMAPS helps the AFMC comply with
military standards for accounting and improved

management visibility of labor and material
expenses.

During the year, the division aided in the 
development of the Knowledge Acquisition and
Management Network for the U.S. Army Aviation
and Missile Command Blackhawk Program Office.
Using the latest Enterprise Application Integration
and Web technologies, this system integrates
standalone legacy drawing repositories and config-
uration management systems.

Also in 1999, the division developed a center of
excellence in Supply Chain Logistics at Warner
Robins Air Logistics Center. The system incorporates
process innovation and solutions for legacy system
integration that are essential for a competitive
maintenance, repair, and overhaul depot. 

Civil Engineering,
Transportation, and 
Local Government

Effective February 1, 2000, Intergraph's civil
engineering, transportation, and local government
organizations became part of Intergraph
Government Solutions. This combination positions
Intergraph Government Solutions to be the leading
supplier of business solutions to federal and state
departments of transportation (DOTs), cities,
counties, rail companies, and the engineering
community that serves them. 

For DOTs and local governments, Intergraph’s 
civil engineering solutions include software and
services, from data collection to site design. To help
agencies strategically and efficiently manage trans-
portation networks, Intergraph’s transportation
software integrates maps, photos, property records,
survey and engineering data, inspection reports,
and statistics on traffic safety and congestion.

"For 2000, Intergraph Government Solutions anticipates

strong growth in federal, state, and local government

markets that depend on integrated software, hardware, and

services.  In particular, we expect growth in civil engineering

solutions that we provide to transportation agencies, GIS

products for local and national governments, military

solutions, and a broad range of consulting, survey, and 

training services offered under the General

Services Administration contracts."

William Salter
Chief Executive Officer 

Intergraph Government Solutions

Intergraph Government
Solutions
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Federal Hardware
Solutions

This division provides turnkey solutions at competi-
tive prices. These solutions include computer
hardware, software integration services, and COTS
products repackaged to withstand extreme condi-
tions encountered in military and industrial
environments.

The division's flagship product, the TD-R 2000
workstation, is an integral part of the U.S. Navy's
Smart Ship technology program, enabling the Navy
to sustain high operational workloads with reduced
crews. In 1999, sales of ruggedized workstations
continued to grow, as 11 Navy vessels deployed
TD-R 2000 workstations.

In March 1999, Intergraph delivered 130 mission
planning workstations essential to Navy fleet pilots'
ability to successfully plan and execute their
missions worldwide. Intergraph has provided more
than 350 systems to the Tactical Automated Mission
Planning Systems (TAMPS) programs since 1997.

Intergraph Mapping and
Information Systems

Intergraph Mapping and Information Systems
develops, markets, and supports a wide variety of
systems, products, and services to major mapping
and charting organizations around the world, as
well as to ministries of defense, government
agencies, civil aviation authorities, airlines and
airports, and prime contractors and systems
integrators. Solutions include map and chart
production, security, identification, intelligence,
environmental, command and control, and 
geospatial data exploitation systems. 

In 1999, Intergraph Mapping and Information
Systems revenues from services were level with 
the previous year, but revenues from product 
sales were strong, led by sales of the Dynamo
software suite. Major map production agencies 
and companies use Dynamo to produce high-
quality digital maps.

The division's complete suite of COTS processing
software enables imagery and geospatial data
exploitation, terrain modeling and visualization,
data translation to a wide range of standard digital
formats, data analyses, and data output to maps
and charts at any required scale and specification.

Strategic Partnership

In 1999, Intergraph and Litton PRC unveiled the first weather-enabled decision-support
system, GeoWeather Solutions. This jointly developed state-of-the-art system integrates real-
time weather data with ground-based assets mapped in a geographic information system.
This new solution provides benefits and cost savings to a number of industries, including
transportation, utilities, commercial aviation, agriculture, construction, manufacturing, and
emergency management services.
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1. The first weather-enabled decision-support
system, GeoWeather Solutions includes
warnings and watches for extreme weather
conditions such as lightning, harsh temper-
atures and high winds, heavy rain, flash
floods and severe thunderstorms, and 
freezing conditions affecting crops and
roadways. 

2. TD-R 2000 ruggedized workstations help 
the U.S. Navy sustain high operational
workloads with reduced crews. 

3. Intergraph's InRoads SelectCAD allows
departments of transportation and
engineering/construction firms to easily
switch between AutoCAD, IntelliCad 98, 
and MicroStation platforms. 

4. Fleet Industrial Support Center (FISC), 
Pearl Harbor, chose Intergraph Government
Solutions to help evaluate and build an
intranet site that accesses, integrates, and
manages data from commercial and
government off-the-shelf fuel management
applications. 
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Intergraph's Mapping/GIS business unit develops,
markets, and supports core geospatial products
that address a wide range of market segments with
industry-specific solutions, including land manage-
ment, road and rail transportation, and water and
wastewater infrastructure management.

Driven by industry-proven technology – the
GeoMedia® and MGE platforms – Intergraph
continues to penetrate the government and trans-
portation markets as well as provide geographic
visualization and analysis tools useful in many
businesses – real estate, retailing, service
networks, transportation networks, site assessment,
agriculture, and insurance. 

The GeoMedia suite of
solutions – increasing the
value of data

GeoMedia products are broadening the way people
think about and use GIS data in the real world.
GeoMedia is designed to integrate and maintain
geographic data integrity from multiple vendors
and from standard data sources. This is especially

critical in government applications where cities,
states, provinces, and nations have multiple
sources of geospatial data, and few of the data
sources use the same format. By embracing the
Web, GeoMedia technology is the catalyst to bring
the data together, in real-time, without having to
change it. By making GIS data available to a
growing world of users, GeoMedia products expand
and maximize the value of GIS data.

GeoMedia Web Map –
setting the standard for
Internet GIS

GeoMedia Web Map is fast becoming the industry
standard for Internet-based GIS. GeoMedia Web
Map makes it easy to share GIS spatial data across
borders, industries, and disciplines by using a

standard Web browser. Now tax agencies can share
data with planning departments. Utility trucks can
carry laptop computers with maps linked to trouble
reports. And the general public can have instant
access to data about their voting locations, street
repairs, and more. An effective, inexpensive
method for increasing communication and 
community involvement, GeoMedia Web Map 
can help governments and citizens make better-
informed decisions.

GeoMedia and Oracle 

Intergraph continued its alliance with Oracle
Corporation, embarking on new development 
to support Oracle8i and its Spatial object model.
These combined spatial technology powerhouses –
GeoMedia’s mapping technology and Oracle’s
Spatial database – continue to transform enter-
prises across the world. Government agencies and
corporations are adopting this combination as their
standard for mapping and GIS. 

GeoMedia – a look ahead 

In 1999, Intergraph introduced major new
software versions for the entire GeoMedia product
family and continued its support for MGE.
Intergraph continues its commitment to open and
highly productive solutions for mapping/GIS
professionals with the next release of GeoMedia
products scheduled for mid-year 2000.

"Government, transportation, and other market segments

require substantial access to geographic information. In 2000,

the Mapping/GIS business unit expects continued strong

growth as business and government deploy GeoMedia

solutions to accommodate enterprisewide and

Internet-based GIS environments."

Preetha Pulusani
Executive Vice President
Intergraph Mapping/GIS 

Intergraph Mapping/Geographic
Information Systems

Leveraging the Internet

GeoMedia Web Map puts GIS information on the
Internet or on an agency's intranet, where users
can access smart maps that contain hyperlinks on
individual features within the map. GeoMedia Web
Enterprise, a complete Internet development
environment, enables users to create dynamic,
custom Web mapping applications for viewing and
analyzing geographic data. GeoMedia Web
Enterprise resides on a server, so individuals across
the enterprise can access and analyze the data
without the expense of having software reside on
each individual machine.
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South Carolina DOT personnel used
Intergraph Web-based GIS for analyzing
critical data in real-time to help plan,
evaluate, and coordinate the largest 
peacetime evacuation in U.S. history. 
Image courtesy of South Carolina DOT

1999 GIS Worldwide 
Core Business
(software only)
Personal Computer
(includes Windows NT)
Green: Intergraph (36%)
Blue: ESRI (28%)
Orange: Autodesk (6%)
Red: Smallworld (6%)
Yellow: *Other (24%) 

© 2000 Daratech, Inc. Cambridge, MA
*Other includes more than 7 companies, none 
with more than 5% market share



Intergraph Public Safety develops, markets, 
implements, and supports computer-based
solutions for law enforcement organizations, fire
departments, emergency medical and rescue units,
and other public safety agencies. The acknowl-
edged leader in the industry, Intergraph Public
Safety has a global customer base, including such
diverse organizations as the Royal Thai Police,
Bangkok, Thailand; Toronto Police Services,
Canada; the Connecticut State Police; the
Washington D.C. Metro Police and Fire; the Police
and Fire services for the country of New Zealand;
Fire and Emergency Medical Services for Bouches
du Rhone, France; and emergency and security
services for Chicago O'Hare International Airport.

Complete, 
end-to-end solution

In the public safety marketplace, agencies are
searching for an integrated information systems
solution from a single vendor. Intergraph Public
Safety adopted this approach more than five years
ago and now provides turnkey command and
control systems for critical applications such as
dispatching emergency services. We provide a
powerful mobile user interface to the system. We
also offer records management systems for law
enforcement, fire and EMS, and jail management
systems. At Intergraph Public Safety, systems
integration begins at the product design phase, 
not after the project has started.

Proven experience 
with industry-standard
solutions

As other vendors make the transition from propri-
etary, legacy systems, Intergraph Public Safety can
point to five years of successful experience with
systems built on standard computing platforms
using Windows NT and Oracle. From the beginning,
Intergraph Public Safety has embraced the concept
of providing a commercial off-the-shelf (COTS)
approach to developing public safety applications.
While others in the industry meet specific customer
requirements through customization, Intergraph
Public Safety has developed a suite of products
that meet those requirements through product
configuration. This approach has allowed
Intergraph Public Safety to provide a more stable
application for lower support costs, and is a key
enabler in our ability to diversify into new markets.

Diversifying into 
complementary markets

The technology that has made Intergraph Public
Safety the leader in the public safety industry has
been successfully applied to other applications and
markets such as automobile clubs and roadside
assistance, dispatch of utility crews, utility outage
management, military base security, campus
security, and airport security. This diversification
allows Intergraph Public Safety to aggressively
pursue new markets.

"In the fiercely competitive public safety marketplace, Intergraph Public

Safety has emerged as the industry's leading vendor. With customers

around the world, we are the only truly international company in this

market. Our global presence provides for a larger potential market and

insulates us from regional economic fluctuations. We believe that the

trend toward integrating public safety agencies into multi-user consor-

tiums will intensify in 2000 and will continue to be a growth area for

us, based on our track record of successful multi-agency

installations worldwide." 

Roger O. Coupland 
President

Intergraph Public Safety

Intergraph Public Safety

At the end of 1999, Intergraph Public
Safety achieved a record number of 
"cut-overs" as 16 customers began live
operations with their new Y2K-compliant,
Windows NT-based systems. Our users
group and customer services organiza-
tion established a live worldwide
Internet-based forum to assist 
customers into the new century.
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Intergraph Communications develops and imple-
ments geospatial network resource management
solutions to help the international communications
industry automate their network facility mapping,
planning, design, and maintenance operations.
Our customers are some of the world's largest
communications organizations, such as Ameritech,
Telefonica Spain, Telekom Malaysia, Saudi Arabia
MoPTT, and Teléfonos de Argentina. 

Our turnkey solutions, consisting of hardware,
software and services, are production-proven with
some of the world's largest production geospatial
systems. Historical records confirm that our
solutions provide significant savings to our
customers by automating traditionally labor-inten-
sive mapping and design processes. Our customers
have documented as much as 50% to 70% reduc-
tions in the time required to plan and design new
network expansions. Accordingly, we expect strong
growth during 2000 and beyond as the interna-
tional communications industry continues its rapid
network expansion. 

Daratech’s report, GIS Markets and Opportunities
2000, supports Intergraph’s leadership role in
telecommunications software sales – with a 34%
share of the market in 1999 – more than the
second- and third-ranked vendors combined. 

New solutions for 
facility and workforce
management

The year 1999 was a building year for Intergraph
Communications as we solidified our new manage-
ment team and introduced new solutions for the
communications industry. Early in 1999, we
released Inside Plant Manager (IPM), a compre-
hensive facility and life-cycle management solution
that enables planning, provisioning, 
and inventory of central office facilities. IPM was
designed specifically for the communications indus-
try to optimize equipment, circuit, and service
provisioning. This product was successfully imple-
mented at Cox Communications during 1999 with
a system rollout expected during early 2000.

We also introduced our InService workforce
management solution for communications in 
the third quarter of 1999. The system provides
computer-aided crew dispatching so our customers
can respond to the growing demand for new and
complex communications networks while allowing
field crews to respond more quickly than ever. 

Contract wins in 1999 
in traditional and new
markets

Among our new customers for 1999 were 
Shanghai Telephone Office and NEXTLINK.
Shanghai Telephone Office (STO), which manages
one of the world's largest telecom facility systems,
selected Intergraph as the single-source supplier 

for its geospatial network resource management
solution. The STO, serving 3.5 million customers in
China's largest metropolitan region, will use the
system for streamlining the design, construction,
and maintenance of its expanding communications
network. The system was implemented with a fast-
track schedule utilizing our proven communications
template technology. STO will also use Intergraph's
Field Viewing technology for low-cost enterprise
viewing requirements. 

In the booming competitive local exchange 
carrier (CLEC) market, Intergraph was selected 
by NEXTLINK to provide a complete outside plant
management solution. NEXTLINK, a facilities-based
CLEC with a complete fiber network infrastructure,
will use our geospatial network resource manage-
ment solutions to better manage their facilities and
provide faster service to their customers. The core
system will be used by network planners and
engineers to plan, design, track, and manage 
the fiber network. NEXTLINK is also deploying
Intergraph's Web View technology to extend
viewing of the system enterprisewide via their
intranet. 

"Few industries have experienced the monumental change, growth,

and turmoil that the international communications industry has

during the past five years. Clearly, the future belongs to those

companies who can successfully provide communications services

throughout the country, and ultimately the world. Intergraph

Communications stands ready to help the industry manage an

exponential growth of network resources with off-the-shelf

geospatial network resource management

solutions ready for rapid implementation." 

Arthur Spencer
Vice President

Intergraph Communications

Intergraph Communications
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Intergraph Communications uniquely provides
geographic-based solutions for efficient
management of central office facilities, outside
plant network, service/trouble calls, and field
crews. We help the international communica-
tions industry design new networks faster and
provide better customer service.



Geospatial Resource
Management

1999 marked a significant transformation in
Intergraph's product offering to the utility market
segments. Intergraph, as in the past 30 years, is
once again demonstrating leadership in geospatial
solutions with a major shift from isolated
automated mapping, facilities management, and
geographic information systems (AM/FM/GIS) to
Geospatial Resource Management (GRM) systems
that geospatially enable the enterprise.

Intergraph's integrated GRM applications and
services allow utility companies to select one
vendor as their sole provider for geospatial
business processes. The benefits lie in tightly
integrated software components that support enter-
prise resource planning (ERP), customer relations
management, and traditional business systems.
This provides a centralized data repository for the
user that enables accurate storage and accessing 
of information. It also vastly improves provisioning
and sustaining of the service-delivery network. 

Daratech’s report, GIS Markets and Opportunities
2000, supports Intergraph’s leadership role in
utility software sales – with a 36% share of the
market in 1999 – more than the second- and
third-ranked vendors combined. 

G/Industry Solutions

The competitive deregulated utility marketplace
and advancements in relational database and

Web-enabled technology have allowed Intergraph
to expand our products and services into new
growth areas within the utility market. We have
introduced our G/Industry Solutions, which are the 
result of a multi-year research and development
effort to bring industry-standard technology to our
GRM applications. These solutions – G/Electric,
G/Gas, G/Pipeline, G/Water – utilize the latest
database enhancements to provide fast display 
of data. They use sophisticated data management
techniques for the long-term transactions needed in
an engineering/operations environment, and also
include an innovative user interface. Some
customers adopting this new technology include
Puerto Rico Electric Authority, Sacramento Utility
District in California, Ruhrgas in Germany, Kartner
Elektribitats AG in Austria, Kansas City Power and
Light, and Vlaamse Maatschappij voor
Watervoorziening in Belgium.

InService product suite

Included in the GRM offering is a full InService
product line for outage management, automated
dispatching, mobile computing, and field force
automation. In 1999 Intergraph's partner in devel-
oping the technology, Florida Power Corporation,
went into full production with their Delivery 2000
system and is looking towards significant improve-
ments in their service delivery. With Delivery 2000,
Florida Power expects to improve response time for
quicker power restoration, utilize resources at
maximum efficiency for better customer service,

and reduce costs through better outage manage-
ment. The cornerstone of Delivery 2000 is
Intergraph's state-of-the-art Outage Management
System. 

Software system 
integrator

Intergraph provides full integration services. 
Our consultants follow a proven installation
methodology to integrate our GRM applications
with other business enterprise systems. In addition,
Intergraph "productizes" system interfaces to
guarantee compatibility and maintainability. 
With our customers, we are providing interoper-
ability to traditional ERP systems such as SAP.
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"Deregulation, mergers, acquisitions, and

competition have forced utility companies to 

be global entities and forerunners in business

process automation to improve their service-

delivery requirements. Intergraph's innovations

in the geospatial discipline enable us to supply

the electric, gas, pipeline, and water industries

with end-to-end solutions for

operations and engineering." 

Kevin Hitt
Vice President

Intergraph Utilities 

Intergraph Utilities

Geospatial Resouce Management provides 
pre-integrated geographic-based solutions for
customer and market analysis, facilities design
and analysis, operations and maintenance,
trouble call, outage management, automated
dispatching, field force automation with
mobile data solutions, and access to geospatial
information across the enterprise.



Intense 3D graphics accelerators shattered
performance records, winning awards such as
NewMedia's 1999 Hyper Award and Computer
Graphics World's 1999 Innovation Award.
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Intense3D
Intense3D is a world leader in 3D graphics accelera-
tion technology. Our history of graphics innovation
and leadership spans three decades, reaching back
to the inception of the computer graphics industry.
Intense3D's goal is to provide the most powerful
graphics acceleration hardware, the best OpenGL
drivers, and the best mission-critical support to its
OEM computer customers. These customers include
Compaq, Dell, Fujitsu, Fujitsu Siemens, and IBM, 
as well as Intergraph Computer Systems. 

For 2000, Intense3D will continue to add new OEM
partners and to introduce powerful new technology
for graphics professionals.

Intense3D leads the professional 3D graphics 
add-in board market in technology, brand name
recognition, end-user demand, and ISV recommen-
dation and support. Our Wildcat 3D Graphics
Technology™ for Windows NT and UNIX delivers
the industry's fastest graphics performance, as well
as specialized, application-focused features that
target the specific needs of professionals working in
graphics-intensive markets such as mechanical
design automation (MDA), MCAD, visual simula-
tion, digital media, medical imaging, oil and gas
exploration, and content creation. Ideal for
researchers, engineers, designers, content creators
and scientists who interact in real-time with
complex visual datasets, Intense3D's graphics
accelerators are certified with the leading software
vendors from across these disciplines.

In 1999, Intense 3D completed the second
milestone in the Wildcat Graphics product roadmap
by shipping the Wildcat 4110 product. Sales of our
professional graphics accelerators continued to be
strong. These 3D graphics accelerators shattered
performance records, winning awards such as
NewMedia's 1999 Hyper Award and Computer
Graphics World's 1999 Innovation Award. 

Jerry Peterson
President

Intense3D

specialty servers, and digital video systems offer 
a strong price/performance advantage over our
competition and deliver leading-edge technology 
to professional users in vertical, graphics-intensive
markets, such as broadcast and entertainment,
digital media, prepress and publishing, visual
simulation, animation, content creation, 
mechanical CAD, and graphic arts.

During the year, Intergraph Computer Systems
unveiled its new Wahoo Technology with Streaming
Multiport Architecture™, a systems architecture
specifically engineered to dramatically improve both
throughput and performance for 2D/3D graphics.
According to benchmark results, systems based on
the Wahoo Technology offer a significant perform-
ance advantage over competitive offerings. Wahoo
Technology was delivered in December along with

Intergraph Computer Systems' new Zx10 ViZual
Workstations, the world's fastest and most powerful
Windows NT-based workstations. 

Intergraph Computer Systems continues to actively
pursue partnering opportunities with companies
that offer complementary technology and sales
channels.

Intergraph 
Computer Systems

Intergraph Computer Systems, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Intergraph Corporation, develops
high-performance core hardware – high-end 3D
graphics workstations, specialty servers, and digital
video products – that are used in numerous profes-
sional-level creative and technical disciplines. We
add value to these core hardware products with our
extensive market knowledge and superior systems
engineering to create high-performance, leading-
edge, and highly reliable visual computing
solutions. 

In 1999, Intergraph Computer Systems' revenues
declined as a continuing result of Intel's punitive
actions, causing our exit from the generic PC and
server businesses. However, our focus on high-
performance Windows NT-based hardware products
and solutions continues. These workstations,

Manfred Wittler
Chairman and CEO

Intergraph Computer Systems

Intergraph Computer Systems new Zx10
ViZual Workstation with Wahoo Technology
is the world's fastest Windows NT-based
workstation. 



Z/I Imaging Corporation is a joint venture between
Intergraph and Carl Zeiss. The new company
combines the expertise of Carl Zeiss in the areas of
optics and precision mechanics with Intergraph's
considerable experience in workstation and
software development. Z/I Imaging's photogram-
metry and GIS imaging solutions include aerial
cameras, workstations, and image management,
processing, and distribution software.
Photogrammetry is used for spatial and volume
measurement of terrain in order to study what is
happening on the earth's surface. The open,
Windows NT-based systems are used by industry
and government professionals as a front-end to
mapping, GIS, and civil engineering software from
a variety of leading vendors. Z/I Imaging is a top
supplier of photogrammetry hardware and software
for the U.S. DOTs, and its systems are used by a
growing number of data imagery services.

Greater demand for
imagery via the Internet

The demand for terrain imagery by downstream
consumers in mapping, geographic information
systems, and civil engineering is large and
growing. Roads are planned, forests are managed,
and airport sites are developed using various
aspects of photogrammetry imaging systems.
Smaller service companies who provide data
imagery are continually entering the market. And
with greater demand for data imagery and easy
access via the Internet, the market for image
acquisition, processing, and distribution, currently

estimated at more than $2.4 billion, will continue
to expand. With our technology, products, and
services, we are positioned to pursue several differ-
ent pieces of this large market for a profitable
business in the future.

Z/I Imaging is No. 1 
in photogrammetry

Continuing to lead the photogrammetry portion of
that market, sales were again strong for Z/I
Imaging in this merger year, principally due to the
company's well-established customer base, early
adoption of Windows NT, superior aerial cameras,
and graphics capabilities for photogrammetry.
Revenues were led by sales of ImageStation Z and
reconnaissance cameras.

New product line 
for managing and 
distributing digital images

During the year, Z/I Imaging introduced its new
product family for managing and distributing digital
imagery. These products follow an open, non-
proprietary standard that ensures compatibility with
a variety of leading mapping, GIS, and civil
engineering applications. The new products address
all aspects of handling digital imagery – from
simple data management through Web deployment
of projects – and commerce over the Internet. Data
imagery providers, for example, can turn their Web
sites into imagery e-commerce sites, with customers
viewing the information related to the images they
need, the source, and the cost of the data. 

Digital aerial survey
camera in development

Z/I Imaging also began development of a digital
aerial survey camera based on a matrix CCD sensor.
This technology will permit the generation of
digital satellite data and direct digital images for
surveying and reconnaissance, at altitudes ranging
from a few hundred meters up to 10 kilometers.
The new camera will, for the first time, enable city
planners, environmental planners, and construction
engineers to perform their own 3D measurements
and plotting.

"In the last quarter of 1999 – the first full quarter of operation –

Z/I Imaging was profitable, and the outlook for 2000 is excel-

lent. We expect the demand for spatial information to increase

dramatically as more people gain access to it through the

Internet, and Z/I Imaging will be there to enable users to

capture, work with, and distribute the data. We are investing in

the digital future by developing new products for photogram-

metry, airborne reconnaissance, aerial mapping,

and image distribution."

Lewis Graham 
Chief Executive Officer 
Z/I Imaging Corporation

Z/I Imaging
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1. Aerial photograph courtesy of Triathlon. 

2. ImageStation Z offers stereo viewing, 
a comfortable work area, and fast image
processing and display speeds.

3. Z/I Imaging R&D efforts will continue 
to focus on new digital products for
photogrammetry, airborne reconnais-
sance, and aerial mapping. 

2

3

Image courtesy of Photo Science, Inc. 
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• IVC GMBH  • City Of Winnipeg  • Avantel  • CBS  • Bell County,
Texas  • San Diego Sheriff, California  • Cable & Wireless
Communications  • Fashion Institute of Technology, New York City 
• Dreamworks Interactive  • Chief Directorate Surveys & Mapping 
• Thunder Bay Police, Canada  • City of Birmingham, Alabama 
• ALLTEL  • Manatee County, Florida  • Hongkong & China Gas 
• City of London Police, Canada  • IBM Software Division  • ELUS
Communications  • 477 Pakistan Army Survey Group  • KPN
Telecom  • Mayo Clinic, Minnesota  • Compaq  • Scitech International
• Cox Communications  • Department of Main Roads  • Australian
Federal Police  • Streitkraefteamt - S4  • Disney Interactive • South
Carolina DOT  • Blur Studio  • El Paso Energy  • Telefonica of Spain
• Department of Survey & Mapping Malaysia  • Secretaria de
Educacion Publica  • Empresas Publicas de Medellin  • Boone
County, Kentucky  • Seoul City Gas  • Mississippi DOT  • Florida
Power  • Walter Meier  • Cemig, Brazil  • Foundsoft Science &
Technology  • Gasunie  • Hitachi Zosen Information System  • City of
San Jose  • HSI  • Duke Energy  • Zentrale Vergabestelle der Bundes
• IBGE - RJ  • Geocom Informatik Ag  • IBM  • Fujitsu Siemens 
• Illinois Power  • AT&T  • Jefferson County Sheriff, Alabama 
• Kansas City Power & Light  • British Columbia Government 
• Id Software  • Telekom Malaysia  • Kern County Sheriff, California
• MichCon  • HZS • Pennsylvania DOT  • Detroit Edison  • Ministry of
Forests  • Korea Gas Corporation (KOGAS)  • NCR  • Nevada DOT 
• Tennessee Highway Patrol  • ICARI Center, Montreal, Canada 
• Ontario Hydro Services Company  • Columbia Gas/Gulf
Transmission  • PREPA  • Questar Regulated Services  • Amt fuer
Militaerisches Geowesen  • Rio de Janeiro Brigade, Brazil  • ABC 
• Royal Automobile Club, Victoria, Australia  • Sprint  • Consolidated
Edison of New York  • Sarasota County, Florida  • Dutch PTT 
• Saudi Arabian Oil Co (Saudi Aramco)  • Forsyth County, North
Carolina  • City of Edmonton (Nurali Murji)  • Toronto Hydro 
• Suffolk Constabulary, U.K.  • Taiwan Power  • Hongkong Telekom
• Beijing Cable TV  • Anglian Water • Texas Utilities  • National Fuel
• Kitsap County, Washington  • TRW Dominguez Hills  • American
City Business Journals  • Ohio DOT  • Vermessungsamt Der Stadt
Zuerich  • Wind Telecomunicazioni SpA  • Caddo Parrish, Louisiana  
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Results of Operations
Summary.  In fourth quarter 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest operating segment.  Accordingly, the Company’s consoli-
dated statements of operations for the three years ended December 31, 1999 reflect VeriBest’s business as a discontinued
operation.  As such, except where noted otherwise, the following discussion of the Company’s results of operations addresses
only results of continuing operations.  VeriBest’s results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 1999 are discussed
separately in “Discontinued Operation” below. 

The following summarized financial data sets forth the results of operations of the Company for each year in the three year
period ended December 31, 1999.  The complete consolidated financial statements of the Company, including footnote disclo-
sures, are presented on pages 33 to 56 of this annual report.
_________________________________________________________________________

1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In millions except per share amounts)

Revenues $   915~ $1,005~ $1,096~
Cost of revenues 625~ 694~ 709~_________________________________________________________________________
Gross profit 290~ 311~ 387~

Operating expenses 342~ 397~ 424~
Nonrecurring operating charges 15~ 15~ 1~_________________________________________________________________________
Loss from operations (^ 67) (101) (^|38)

Interest expense (^  ^6) (^^8) (^^|7)
Arbitration settlements (^ ^9) —~ (^^|6)
Gains on sales of assets 12~ 113~ 5~
Other income (expense) - net (^ ^3) (^^5) (^^|3)_________________________________________________________________________
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (^ 73) (^   |1) (^|49)

Income tax expense (  ^ 6) (^^6) (^^|4)_________________________________________________________________________
Loss from continuing operations (^ 79) (^   |7) (^|53)

Discontinued operation (VeriBest) ^^7~ (^13) (^|17)_________________________________________________________________________
Net loss $(^ 72) $ (^20) $(^|70)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Net loss from continuing operations per share - basic and diluted $(1.60) $ ( .14) $(1.11)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $(1.46) $ ( .41) $(1.46)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

In 1993, the Company began the process of transformation of its proprietary, closed-system product offerings to the open
computing environment of products based on Intel Corporation hardware and Microsoft Corporation software.  The dedication
of significant Company resources to hardware, software, and system implementation for this new environment contributed
substantially to the Company’s operating losses for the years 1993 through 1996.

For hardware implementation, the Company chose to use only Intel processors and to focus its efforts and image creation on its
core capabilities, specifically very high performance computational and graphics capabilities.  This high-end market in the
Windows NT operating system environment is supported only by Intel-based hardware products.  The Company expected that
its four year hardware development effort and investment in the high-end graphics market would result in substantially
increased revenues and profits in 1997, but these benefits were not realized due primarily to actions of Intel described separately
in the “Intel Litigation” section of this report.  In addition, demand for the Company’s software products did not meet expecta-
tions and gross margin on product sales continued to decline due primarily to price competition in the industry.



In 1998, the Company’s revenues and operating results continued to be impacted by its dispute with Intel, as resulting delays in
new product releases eliminated the potential for revenue growth and increased the Company’s inventory obsolescence charges.
Additionally, price competition continued to adversely affect the Company’s margins.  Operating expenses were reduced in
reaction to lower sales volumes and through various restructuring actions, but were offset to a degree by increased legal
expenses related to Intel and other matters.

Revenues and operating results in 1999 were negatively impacted by increasingly weak demand for the Company’s hardware
product offerings, as the Company was unable to recover completely from the loss of momentum caused by Intel’s actions.  As a
result, in third quarter 1999 the Company was forced to exit the personal computer (“PC”) and generic server businesses and
narrow the focus of its Intergraph Computer Systems (“ICS”) business unit to workstations, specialty servers, digital video
products and 3D graphics cards.  The Company also implemented several cost-cutting measures, primarily in the form of direct
reductions in workforce, during 1999 in an effort to align its expenses with the lower revenue levels being generated.  (See
“Nonrecurring Operating Charges” following.)  The Company is actively engaged in discussions with potential business
partners for ICS and is considering all other available alternatives to help stem the losses in this business unit. 

The Company expects that the industry will continue to be characterized by higher performance and lower priced products,
intense competition, rapidly changing technologies, shorter product cycles, and development and support of software standards
that result in less specific hardware and software dependencies by customers.  Improvement in the Company’s operating results
will depend on its ability to accurately anticipate customer requirements and technological trends and to rapidly and continu-
ously develop and deliver new hardware and software products that are competitively priced, offer enhanced performance, and
meet customers’ requirements for standardization and interoperability, and will further depend on its ability to successfully
implement its strategic direction.  In addition, the Company faces significant operational and financial uncertainty of unknown
duration due to its dispute with Intel.  To achieve and maintain profitability, the Company must substantially increase sales
volume and/or continue to align its operating expenses with the level of revenue and gross margin being generated.

Discontinued Operation. On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. operating segment to Mentor Graphics
Corporation, a global provider of electronic hardware and software design solutions and consulting services, for approximately
$11 million, primarily in the form of cash received at closing.  The resulting gain on this transaction of $14.4 million is reflected
in “Gain on sale of discontinued operation, net of income taxes” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations.

The VeriBest business unit served the electronic design automation market, providing software design tools, design processes,
and consulting services for developers of electronic systems.  

For the period in 1999 prior to sale, VeriBest incurred an operating loss of $7.3 million on revenues of $23.7 million.  Similarly,
VeriBest incurred operating losses of $13.2 million and $16.7 million in 1998 and 1997, on revenues of $27.8 million and $28.7
million, respectively.  VeriBest’s operating losses for 1999 and 1998 include nonrecurring operating charges of $.9 million and
$.5 million, respectively, incurred for employee terminations as part of various company-wide restructurings (see
“Nonrecurring Operating Charges” following).  Systems revenues declined by 11% and 17%, respectively, in 1997 and 1998,
reflecting weakening demand for the subsidiary’s software products.  In 1998, the decline in systems revenues was partially
offset by a 21% increase in maintenance revenues as the result of sales force focus on increasing the subsidiary’s maintenance
revenue base.  Results for 1997 were negatively impacted by a 6 point decline in gross margin, primarily the result of declining
systems revenues, partially offset by a 5% decline in operating expenses.  Losses for 1998 were reduced by a 5 point improve-
ment in gross margin as the result of declining royalty costs, and by an additional 10% reduction in operating expenses.  In
1999, VeriBest realized improvements in its revenues, margins, and operating expenses as it directed its selling efforts toward a
newly developed line of proprietary products and realized the benefits of its reduced headcount and revised selling strategy
toward indirect methods.  VeriBest’s headcount declined by approximately 40% from the subsidiary’s inception in January 1996
through its sale in October 1999.

For further information regarding VeriBest, including summarized financial information for all periods presented, see Note 4 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Nonrecurring Operating Charges. In first quarter 1998, the Company reorganized its European operations to reflect the
organization of the Company into distinct business units and to align operating expenses more closely with revenue levels in
that region.  The cost of this reorganization was originally estimated and recorded at $5.4 million, primarily for employee
severance pay and related costs.  During the remainder of 1998, approximately $2.2 million of the costs recorded in first quarter
were reversed as the result of incurrence of lower severance costs than originally anticipated.  In fourth quarter, additional 
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European reorganization costs of $2 million were recorded for further headcount reductions.  The net year to date charge of
$5.2 million is included in “Nonrecurring operating charges” in the 1998 consolidated statement of operations.  Approximately
80 European positions were eliminated in the sales and marketing, general and administrative, and pre- and post-sales support
areas.  Cash outlays related to this charge approximated $3.1 million in 1998, with the remainder paid in 1999.  The Company
estimates this European reorganization has resulted in annual savings of approximately $7 million.

In fourth quarter 1998, the Company took further actions, principally in the form of direct workforce reductions, to align the
operating expenses of its unprofitable businesses with their respective revenue levels.  Approximately 100 positions were elimi-
nated, primarily in the Company’s ICS and VeriBest business units.  The costs of this reduction in force totaled approximately
$1.3 million, $.8 million of which is included in “Nonrecurring operating charges” in the 1998 consolidated statement of
operations.  The remainder of the costs relate to reductions in force in the Company’s VeriBest business unit and, accordingly,
they are reflected  in “Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes” in the 1998 consolidated statement of operations.
Related cash outlays approximated $.8 million in 1998, with the remainder paid in 1999.  The Company estimates that these
headcount reductions have resulted in an annual savings of approximately $7 million.

The remainder of 1998 nonrecurring operating charges consists primarily of write-offs of a) certain intangible assets, primarily
capitalized business system software no longer in use, b) goodwill recorded on a prior acquisition of a domestic subsidiary and
determined to be of no value, and c) a noncompete agreement with a former third party consultant.  Prior to the write-off,
amortization of these intangibles accounted for approximately $3.4 million of the Company’s annual operating expenses.

In second quarter 1999, in response to continued operating losses in its ICS operating segment, the Company implemented a
resizing of its European computer hardware sales organization.  This resizing involved closing most of the Company’s ICS
subsidiaries in Europe and consolidating the European hardware sales effort within the Intergraph subsidiaries in that region.
The associated cost of $2.5 million, primarily for employee severance pay, is included in “Nonrecurring operating charges” in
the 1999 consolidated statement of operations.  Approximately 46 European positions were eliminated, all in the sales and
marketing area.  Related cash outlays approximated $1.4 million in 1999, with the remainder expected to be paid in 2000.  The
Company estimates that this resizing will result in annual savings of approximately $3 million.

In third quarter 1999, the Company took further actions to reduce expenses in its unprofitable business units and restructure
the Company to fully support the vertical markets in which the Company operates.  These actions included eliminating approx-
imately 400 positions worldwide, consolidating offices, completing the worldwide vertical market alignment of the sales force,
and narrowing the focus of the Company’s ICS business unit to workstations, specialty servers, digital video products and 3D
graphics cards.  As a result of these actions, the Company recorded a nonrecurring charge to operations of approximately $20.1
million, $7 million of which is recorded as a component of “Cost of revenues - Systems” in the consolidated statement of opera-
tions.  This $7 million charge represents the costs of inventory write-offs incurred as a result of ICS’s exit from the PC and
generic server business.  The Company estimates that this change in ICS’s product offerings will reduce its annual systems
revenues by approximately $70 to $80 million.  The associated margins for these products range from 15.5% to 17.5%.  The
Company has announced a new line of workstations and specialty servers and is endeavoring to replace revenue associated with
its discontinued products with increased sales volume of its new offerings.

Severance costs associated with third quarter 1999 restructuring totaled approximately $8.7 million, $7.8 million of which is
included in “Nonrecurring operating charges” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations.  The remaining severance
costs relate to headcount reductions in the Company’s VeriBest operating segment and, accordingly, they are reflected in “Loss
from discontinued operation, net of income taxes” in the Company’s 1999 consolidated statement of operations.  Approximately
400 positions company-wide were eliminated through direct reductions in workforce.  All employee groups were affected, but
the majority of eliminated positions derived from the sales and marketing, general and administrative, and customer support
areas.  Related cash expenditures totaled approximately $5.7 million in 1999, with the remainder expected to be paid in 2000.
The Company estimates the annual savings resulting from this reduction in force will approximate $22 million.

The remainder of third quarter 1999 nonrecurring operating charges consists of write-offs of capitalized business system
software no longer required as a result of the verticalization of the Company’s business units and resulting decentralization of
portions of the corporate financial and administrative functions.

At December 31, 1999, the total remaining accrued liability for severance related to 1999 reductions in force was approximately
$5 million and is included in “Other accrued expenses” in the December 31, 1999 consolidated balance sheet.  These costs are
expected to be paid in 2000 and relate primarily to severance liabilities in European countries, which typically take several 



months to settle.  Severance payments to date have been funded from existing cash balances and from proceeds from the sale of
VeriBest.  For further discussion regarding the Company’s liquidity, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” following.

Gains on Sales of Assets. As part of the effort to focus on its core competencies, in 1998 the Company sold its Solid Edge and
Engineering Modeling system product lines at a gain of $102.8 million and its printed circuit board manufacturing facility at a
gain of $8.3 million.  Similarly, in 1999 the Company sold its InterCAP subsidiary at a gain of $11.5 million.  The Company’s
gains on these transactions are included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the consolidated statements of operations.  See
“Nonoperating Income and Expense” following for further details.

SCI.  Reflecting the trend toward outsourcing in the industry, in fourth quarter 1998 the Company sold substantially all of its
U.S. manufacturing inventory and assets to SCI Technology Inc. (“SCI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCI Systems, Inc., and
SCI assumed responsibility for manufacturing of substantially all of the Company’s hardware products.  In addition, the
Company licensed certain related intellectual property to SCI, and SCI employed approximately 300 of the Company’s manufac-
turing employees.  The total purchase price for the assets was approximately $62.4 million, $42.5 million of which was received
during the fourth quarter of 1998.  The final purchase price installment of $19.9 million was received in January 1999.
Proceeds from the sale have been utilized primarily to retire debt.  The Company’s $1.5 million gain on this transaction is
included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1998 consolidated statement of operations.  

As part of this transaction, SCI retained the option to sell to the Company any inventory included in the initial purchase which
had not been utilized in the manufacture and sale of finished goods within six months of the date of the sale (the “unused
inventory”).  On June 30, 1999, SCI exercised this option and sold to the Company unused inventory having a value of approxi-
mately $10.2 million in exchange for a cash payment of $2 million and a short-term installment note payable in the principal
amount of $8.2 million.  This note was paid in three monthly installments concluding October 1, 1999 and bore interest at a
rate of 9%.  The Company’s payments to SCI were funded primarily with existing cash balances. 

Significant contingencies related to this arrangement include the ability of the Company to obtain most favorable pricing for
products purchased from SCI through higher volumes and the ability of the Company to accurately forecast its requirements of
SCI.  The Company benefits from lower employee headcount and lower per unit costs for materials and overhead expenses if
higher volumes are achieved.  The Company is subject to forecasting risk, and retains the risk associated with inventory excess
and obsolescence, defined in the agreement as any component or material in SCI’s inventory for more than 60 days and which
is in excess of demand as reflected in the Company’s six month forecast.

Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties. The Company has extensive ongoing litigation with Intel
Corporation, and its business is subject to certain other risks and uncertainties, including those described below.

Intel Litigation.  The Company filed a legal action on November 17, 1997, in U.S. District Court, the Northern District of
Alabama, Northeastern Division (the “Alabama Court”), charging Intel Corporation, the supplier of all of the Company’s micro-
processor supply, with anticompetitive business practices.  In the lawsuit, Intergraph alleges that Intel attempted to coerce the
Company into relinquishing to Intel certain computer hardware patents through a series of wrongful acts, including interfer-
ence with business and contractual relations, interference with technical assistance from third party vendors, breach of
contract, negligence, misappropriation of trade secrets, and fraud based upon Intel’s failure to promptly notify the Company of
defects in Intel’s products and timely correction of such defects, and further alleging that Intel has infringed upon the
Company’s patents.  The Company’s patents define the architecture of the cache memory of an Intergraph developed micro-
processor.  The Company believes this architecture is at the core of Intel’s entire Pentium line of microprocessors and systems.
On December 3, 1997, the Company amended its complaint to include a count charging Intel with violations of federal antitrust
laws.  Intergraph asserts claims for compensatory and treble damages resulting from Intel’s wrongful conduct and infringing
acts, and punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish and deter Intel’s wrongful conduct.  Additionally, the Company
requested that Intel be enjoined from continuing the alleged wrongful conduct which is anticompetitive and/or violates federal
antitrust laws, so as to permit Intergraph uninterrupted development and sale of Intel-based products.

On November 21, 1997, the Company filed a motion in the Alabama Court to enjoin Intel from disrupting or delaying its supply
of products and product information pending resolution of Intergraph’s legal action.  On April 10, 1998, the Alabama Court
ruled in favor of Intergraph and ordered that Intel be preliminarily enjoined from terminating Intergraph’s rights as a strategic
customer in current and future Intel programs, and from otherwise taking any action adversely affecting Intel’s business
relationship with Intergraph or Intergraph’s ability to design, develop, produce, manufacture, market or sell products incorpo-
rating, or based upon, Intel products or information.  The Court’s ruling required that Intel carry out business with Intergraph
under the same terms and conditions, with the same rights, privileges, and opportunities as Intel makes available to 
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Intergraph’s competitors who are also strategic customers of Intel.  In response to the Alabama Court’s decision, on April 16,
1998, Intel appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (the “Appeals Court”).  On November 5, 1999,
the Appeals Court vacated the preliminary injunction that had been entered by the Alabama Court.  This ruling by the Appeals
Court is not expected to impact Company operations as Intel is bound by an Agreement and Consent Order with the Federal
Trade Commission entered March 17, 1999 not to restrict microprocessor sales to the Company and not to take coercive actions
that were identified by the Company in its legal action against Intel.

On June 17, 1998, Intel filed its answer in the Alabama case, which included counterclaims against Intergraph, including claims
that Intergraph has infringed seven patents of Intel.  On July 8, 1998, the Company filed its answer to the Intel counterclaims,
among other things denying any liability under the patent infringement asserted by Intel.  On June 17, 1998, Intel filed a motion
before the Alabama Court seeking a summary judgment holding that Intel is licensed to use the patents that the Company
asserted against Intel in the Company’s original complaint.  This “license defense” was based on Intel’s interpretation of the facts
surrounding the acquisition by the Company of the Advanced Processor Division of Fairchild Semiconductor Corporation in
1987.  On September 15, 1998, the Company filed a cross motion with the Alabama Court requesting summary adjudication in
favor of the Company.  On November 13, 1998, the Company amended its complaint to include two additional counts of patent
infringement against Intel.  The Company requested the court to issue a permanent injunction enjoining Intel from further
infringement and to order that the financial impact of the infringement be calculated and awarded in treble to Intergraph.  On
June 4, 1999, the Alabama Court granted the Company’s September 15, 1998 motion and ruled that Intel has no license to use the
Company’s Clipper patents as Intel had claimed in its motion for summary judgment.  On October 12, 1999, the Alabama Court
reversed its June 4, 1999 order and dismissed the Company’s patent claims against Intel.  The Company is confident that Intel has
no license to use the Clipper patents and believes that the court’s original decision on this issue was correct.  On October 15, 1999,
the Company appealed the Alabama Court’s October 12, 1999 order.  No decision has been entered.

The Company believes that Intel’s counterclaims, including the alleged infringement of seven Intel patents, will not result in
material adverse consequences for the Company.

At an oral hearing held February 25, 2000, the Alabama Court indicated that the trial date for this case, previously scheduled for
June, 2000, will be continued.  A formal schedule has not been entered, but the Company believes it likely that trial will be
rescheduled for the Summer of 2001.  

On March 10, 2000 the Alabama Court entered an order dismissing the antitrust claims of the Company against Intel, based in
part upon a February 17, 2000 decision by the Appeals Court in another case (CSU v. Xerox).  The Company considers this
dismissal to be in error and intends to vigorously pursue its antitrust case against Intel.  At present, the Company is considering
a number of possible options which may include bringing an immediate appeal of the order of the Alabama Court or an appeal
following the end of trial and judgment on the merits of the Company’s case in chief.  At the present time, the Company is
unable to determine the effect, if any, of this dismissal on the Company’s overall case against Intel.

Effects. The Company ceased further design of its Clipper microprocessor at the end of 1993, and made a substantial invest-
ment in redesign of its hardware platform for utilization of Intel microprocessors.  The Company relied on the assurances,
representations, and commitments of Intel that they would supply Intergraph’s microprocessor needs on fair and reasonable
terms, and would provide Intergraph with the essential technical information, assistance, and advice necessary to utilize the
microprocessors to be developed and supplied by Intel.  As a result of the assurances of Intel and its transition to Intel-based
workstations, Intergraph is technologically and economically bound to the use of Intel’s microprocessors.  Successful participa-
tion in the high-end workstation market requires involvement in Intel product development programs that provide advance
information for the development of new products to be sold by Intergraph and others and permit formulation of standards and
specifications for those new products.  During 1997, Intergraph’s product design and release cycle was severely impacted by
Intel’s refusal to provide Intergraph with advance technology and product information and immediate information on Intel
defects and corrections.  Yet, Intel continued to provide this information to the Company’s competitors.  Intel’s refusal to
provide this vital information delayed the Company’s new product releases by one to six months, resulting in lost sales for the
Company as well as increased discounting on available products, severely impacting the Company’s revenues and margins.
While the April 1998 ruling of the Alabama Court required Intel to provide Intergraph with advance product samples and
technical information, the Company lost considerable sales momentum and continued to feel residual effects from the dispute
through the end of 1998, including shipment problems resulting from a non-Intel chipset used in certain of the Company’s
workstations.  In late 1997, when the dispute looked as if it might jeopardize the Company’s supply of Intel components, an
alternate chipset supplier was selected for some designs.  In the third quarter of 1998, that vendor had difficulty delivering
enough parts to the Company, resulting in a significant backlog that could not be shipped until the fourth quarter.  It was not 



until October 1998 that all of the Company’s hardware product offerings contained the latest Intel technology and were techno-
logically back in line with industry competition.  Additionally, while Intel is supplying the Company with advance product
samples and technical information, the Company believes that their responsiveness is not at the same level as prior to the
dispute.  In 1999, demand for the Company’s hardware products continued to decline as the Company was unable to recover
completely from the loss of momentum caused by Intel’s actions.   As a result, in the third quarter, the Company exited the
personal computer and generic server businesses and narrowed the focus of its ICS business unit to workstations, specialty
servers, digital video products and 3D graphics cards.  The Company is also actively engaged in discussions with potential
business partners for ICS and is considering all other available alternatives to help stem the losses in this business unit. 

Damages.  During the course of the Intel litigation, the Company has employed a variety of experts to prepare estimates of the
damages suffered by the Company under various claims of injury brought by the Company.  The following damage estimates
were provided to Intel in the August/September 1999 time frame in due course of the litigation process: estimated damages for
injury covered under non-patent claims through June 1999 - $100 million; estimated additional damages for injury covered
under non-patent claims through December 2003 - $400 million, subject to present-value reduction.  These numbers are
estimates only and any recovery of damages in this litigation could be substantially less than these estimates or substantially
greater than these estimates depending on a variety of factors that cannot be determined at this time.  Factors that could lead to
recovery of substantially less that these estimates include, but are not limited to, the failure of the Alabama Court or the Appeals
Court to sustain the legal basis for one or more of the Company’s claims, the failure of the jury to award amounts consistent
with these estimates,  the failure of the Alabama Court or the Appeals Court to sustain any jury award in amounts consistent
with these estimates, the settlement by the Company of the Intel litigation in an amount inconsistent with these estimates, and
the failure of the Company to successfully defend itself from Intel’s patent counterclaims in the Alabama Court and in the
Appeals Court and a consequential recovery by Intel for damages and/or a permanent injunction against the Company.  Factors
that could lead to recovery substantially greater than these estimates include, but are not limited to, success by the Company in
recovering punitive damages on one or more of its non-patent claims.   

The Company believes it was necessary to take legal action against Intel in order to defend its workstation business, its intellec-
tual property, and the investments of its shareholders.  The Company is vigorously prosecuting its positions and defending
against Intel’s claims and believes it will prevail in these matters, but at present is unable to predict an outcome.  The Company
does expect, however, that adverse effects on its operations will continue in the near term, including increased legal and admin-
istrative expenses associated with the lawsuit.

See “Other Risks and Uncertainties” below for additional information regarding Intel’s actions. 

The Company has other ongoing litigation, none of which is considered to represent a material contingency for the Company at
this time.  However, any unanticipated unfavorable ruling in any of these proceedings could have an adverse impact on the
Company’s results of operations and cash flow.

Other Risks and Uncertainties. The Company develops its own graphics, data management, and applications software as
part of its continuing product development activities.  The Company has standard license agreements with Microsoft
Corporation for use and distribution of the Windows NT operating system and with UNIX Systems Laboratories for use and
distribution of the UNIX operating system.  The license agreements are perpetual and allow the Company to sublicense the
operating systems software upon payment of required sublicensing fees.  The Company also has an extensive program for the
licensing of third party application and general utility software for use on systems and workstations.

The Company owns and maintains a number of registered patents and registered and unregistered copyrights, trademarks, and
service marks.  The patents and copyrights held by the Company are the principal means by which the Company preserves and
protects the intellectual property rights embodied in the Company’s hardware and software products.  Similarly, trademark
rights held by the Company are used to preserve and protect the goodwill represented by the Company’s registered and unregis-
tered trademarks.

As industry standards proliferate, there is a possibility that the patents of others may become a significant factor in the
Company’s business.  Personal computer technology, which is used in the Company’s workstation and server products, is widely
available, and many companies, including Intergraph, are attempting to develop patent positions concerning technological
improvements related to personal computers, workstations and servers.  With the possible exception of its ongoing litigation
with Intel (in which the Company expects to prevail), it does not appear that the Company will be prevented from using the
technology necessary to compete successfully, since patented technology is typically available in the industry under royalty 
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bearing licenses or patent cross licenses, or the technology can be purchased on the open market.  Any increase in royalty
payments or purchase costs would increase the Company’s costs of manufacture, however, and it is possible that some key
improvement necessary to compete successfully in markets served by the Company may not be available.

In addition, computer software technology is increasingly being protected by patents, and many companies, including
Intergraph, are developing patent positions for software innovations.  It is unknown at the present time whether patented
software technology will be made generally available under license or whether specific innovations will be held by their inven-
tors and not made available to others.  In many cases, it may be possible to employ software techniques that avoid the patents of
others, but the possibility exists that some features needed to compete successfully in a particular segment of the software
market may be unavailable or may demand unacceptable costs due to royalty requirements.  Patented software techniques that
become de facto industry standards are among those that are likely to raise costs or prevent the Company from competing
successfully in particular markets.

An inability to retain significant third party license rights, in particular the Microsoft license, to protect the Company’s
copyrights, trademarks, and patents, or to obtain current technical information or any required patent rights of others through
licensing or purchase, all of which are important to success in the industry in which the Company competes, could significantly
reduce the Company’s revenues and adversely affect its results of operations.

Technology significant to the Company is sometimes made available in the form of proprietary information or trade secrets of
others.  Prior to the dispute with Intel, Intel had made freely available technical information used by the Company to design,
market and support its products that use Intel components.  Such information is claimed by Intel to be proprietary and is made
available by Intel only under nondisclosure agreements.  Prior to the April 1998 ruling of the Alabama Court, Intel was
withholding such information, attempting to cancel existing agreements and refusing to enter into new nondisclosure agree-
ments with the Company.  Intel’s actions are the subject matter of current litigation.  These actions have damaged the Company
by slowing the introduction of new products using Intel components and preventing proper maintenance and support of
Company products using Intel components.

Year 2000 Issue.  Until recently, most computer programs were written to store only two digits of date-related information.
Such programs may be unable to distinguish between the year 1900 and the year 2000, potentially causing data processing
malfunctions and computer system failures.  The Company has successfully completed all aspects of its Year 2000 readiness
program with respect to both its internal systems and its products.  As of the date of this filing, the Company has encountered
no significant Year 2000 problems; however, there can be no assurance that the Company has detected all of the problems that
could lead to a potential system failure or disruption of operations.  Additionally, any undetected errors or defects in the current
product offerings of the Company or its suppliers could result in increased costs for the Company and potential litigation over
Year 2000 compliance issues. 

The Company employed no additional resources to complete its Year 2000 readiness program, and as a result, the related costs,
which were funded from operations and expensed as incurred, did not have a material impact on its results of operations or
financial condition.  Year 2000 related changes in customer spending patterns have not had, and are not anticipated to have, a
material impact on the Company’s orders or revenues.

See Notes 1, 5, 7, 8, and 12 to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of risks and uncertainties related to the
Company.

Arbitration Settlements. The Company maintains an equity ownership position in Bentley Systems, Incorporated
(“BSI”), the developer and owner of MicroStation, a software product utilized in many of the Company’s software applications
and for which the Company serves as a nonexclusive distributor.  In May 1997, the Company received notice of the adverse
determination of an arbitration proceeding with BSI in which the Company had alleged that BSI inappropriately and without
cause terminated a contractual arrangement with the Company, and in which BSI had filed a counterclaim against the
Company seeking significant damages as the result of the Company’s alleged failure to use best efforts to sell software support
services pursuant to terms of the contractual arrangement terminated by BSI.  The arbitrator’s award against the Company was
in the amount of $6.1 million and is included in “Arbitration settlements” in the 1997 consolidated statement of operations.
Approximately $5.8 million in fees otherwise owed the Company by BSI were offset against the amount awarded to BSI.  In
addition, the contractual arrangement that was the subject of this arbitration was terminated effective with the award and, as a
result, the Company no longer sells the related software support services under this agreement.  The Company and BSI have
entered into a new agreement which establishes single support services between the two companies.



In a second proceeding brought in March 1996, BSI commenced arbitration against the Company with the American
Arbitration Association, Atlanta, Georgia, relating to the respective rights of the companies under their April 1987 Software
License Agreement and other matters, including the Company’s alleged failure to properly account for and pay to BSI certain
royalties on its sales of BSI software products, and seeking significant damages.  On March 26, 1999, the Company and BSI
executed a Settlement Agreement and Mutual General Release (“the Agreement”) to settle this arbitration and mutually release
all claims related to the arbitration or otherwise, except for a) certain litigation between the companies that is the subject of a
separate settlement agreement and b) payment for products and services obtained or provided in the normal course of business
since January 1, 1999.  Both the Company and BSI expressly deny any fault, liability, or wrongdoing concerning the claims that
were the subject matter of the arbitration and have settled solely to avoid continuing litigation with each other.

Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company on April 1, 1999 made payment to BSI of $12 million and transferred to BSI
ownership of three million of the shares of BSI’s Class A common stock owned by the Company.  The transferred shares were
valued at approximately $3.5 million on the Company’s books, and the Company’s investment in BSI (reflected in “Investments
in affiliates” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets) was reduced accordingly.  As a result of the settlement, Intergraph’s
equity ownership in BSI was reduced from approximately 50% to 33%.  Additionally, the Company had a $1.2 million net receiv-
able from BSI relating to business conducted prior to January 1, 1999 which was written off in connection with the settlement.

In first quarter 1999, the Company accrued a nonoperating charge to earnings of approximately $8.6 million in connection
with the settlement, representing the portion of settlement costs not previously accrued.  This charge is included in “Arbitration
settlements” in the 1999 consolidated statement of operations.

The $12 million payment to BSI was funded primarily from existing cash balances.  For further discussion regarding the
Company’s liquidity, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” following.

Orders. Systems orders for 1999 were $605 million, down 24% from the prior year after increases of 3% and 7% in 1998 and
1997, respectively, including $10.3 million in orders of the Company’s discontinued VeriBest operation.  Order levels in 1997
were characterized by less than anticipated demand for the Company’s hardware product offerings, due in part to the slow
customer and market acceptance of the Windows NT/Intel strategy, and by weakened demand for its software products.  The
previously described actions of Intel also adversely impacted hardware orders in both 1997 and 1998.  In the last half of 1997,
the Company experienced a two month delay in shipment of the Company’s TDZ 2000 line of workstations as the result of
Intel’s wrongful conduct and delays.  Order levels in 1998 were further reduced by the first quarter sale of the Company’s Solid
Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines.  In 1999, order volumes declined worldwide, primarily in the Company’s
hardware business as demand continued to weaken, though some weakness has been noted in the Company’s software
segments as well, particularly in the Company’s international markets.

Geographic Regions.  U.S. systems orders, including federal government orders, totaled $313 million for the year, down 30%
from the prior year after increases of 11% and 24% in 1998 and 1997, respectively.  The increases in both 1997 and 1998 were
attributable to growth in the Company’s hardware business and in orders received from the federal government.  Federal orders
were up 25% and 5%, respectively, in 1997 and 1998. Orders growth in 1998, both federal and commercial, was concentrated
primarily in the fourth quarter as the U.S. hardware business began to recover slightly from the effects of the Intel dispute.
However, in 1999, demand for the Company’s hardware product offerings weakened significantly, accounting for the majority of
the decline in U.S. orders.  International orders for 1999 totaled $292 million for the year, down 15% from the prior year after
declines of 6% and 7% in 1998 and 1997, respectively. Order levels have declined significantly in all of the Company’s interna-
tional markets.  Asia Pacific orders totaled $61 million in 1999, down 6% from the 1998 level after declines of 11% in 1998 and
35% in 1997.  Orders in 1996 included several individually significant orders for the Company’s public safety products and
related consulting services which did not recur in 1997.  Additionally, devaluation of Asian currencies, most notably the Korean
won, had a negative impact on orders for the region during the fourth quarter of 1997 and throughout 1998.  This strengthen-
ing of the dollar in Asian markets reduced 1998 orders by approximately 9%.  In 1999, weakening of the dollar against Asian
currencies improved order levels in that region by approximately 5%; however, this positive impact was more than offset by
weakened demand for the Company’s hardware products.  European orders totaled $190 million, down 10% from the prior year
level, after declining 5% in 1998 and remaining flat in 1997.  European order levels in terms of U.S. dollars were reduced by
approximately 3% and 2% in 1999 and 1998, respectively, due to strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the currencies of the
region. 

Revenues. Total revenues from continuing operations for 1999 were $915 million, down 9% from the prior year level after an
8% decline in 1998 and a 3% increase in 1997.
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Systems.  Systems revenue from continuing operations was $623 million in 1999, down 13% from the previous year after a
decrease of 7% in 1998 and an increase of 9% in 1997.  Factors previously cited as affecting systems orders in total and on a
geographic basis, including the actions of Intel in 1997 and 1998, also affected systems revenues over the three year period.
Competitive conditions manifested in declining per unit sales prices continue to adversely affect the Company’s systems
revenues and margin.  In addition, the Company’s hardware revenues remain low as the Company has lost momentum in this
market due to the actions of Intel.

Geographic Regions.  Systems revenues have declined in all geographic markets served by the Company.  U.S. systems sales
from continuing operations, including sales to the federal government, declined by 12% in 1999, after decreasing by 1% in 1998
and increasing by 16% in 1997.  Growth in U.S. systems sales was depressed in 1997 due to the sale of one of the Company’s
unprofitable business units early in the year.  Excluding this business unit, U.S. sales growth was 21% in 1997.  The revenue
decline in 1998 was due primarily to a 7% decrease in sales to the federal government, partially offset by growth in the
Company’s public safety business.  During the second half of 1997 and the first quarter of 1998, Intergraph Public Safety
secured several large U.S. installations, significantly increasing the subsidiary’s revenue base.  The 1999 revenue decline is
primarily attributable to weakened demand for the Company’s hardware products and a 6% decline in sales to the federal
government.  International sales totaled $288 million for the year, down 14% from the prior year level after a 14% decline in
1998 and a 3% increase in 1997.  European sales were down 11%, after a decline of 13% in 1998 and an increase of 6% in 1997.
Asia Pacific systems sales were down 9%, after declines of 25% and 11% in 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

Software.  Sales of the Company’s software applications declined by 10% in 1999 after a 16% decline in 1998 and a 1% decline
in 1997.  Sales of MicroStation declined by 43%, 46%, and 34% in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively (see “MicroStation” below
for further discussion).  In 1997 and 1998, sales of the Company’s plant design software applications increased by 21% and
19%, respectively (such sales declined by 8% in 1999), partially offsetting the effect of the loss in MicroStation sales.  However,
1998 revenues were further reduced as a result of the sale of the Company’s Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System
product lines in early 1998 (these revenues for 1997 were $18.7 million).  See “Nonoperating Income and Expense” below for
further discussion.  In 1999, sales declined for all applications, with the exception of substantial increases in sales of Geomedia
and in sales of federal software applications.  Plant design remains the Company’s highest volume software offering, represent-
ing 28% of total software sales for 1999.  

In terms of broad market segments, the Company’s mapping/geographic information systems and process and building appli-
cations continue to dominate the Company’s product mix at approximately 50% and 19% of total systems sales in 1999,
respectively (47% and 19%, respectively, in 1998 and 57% and 27%, respectively, in 1997).  Due to the sale of the Company’s
Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines in March 1998, mechanical design, engineering and manufactur-
ing applications no longer represent a significant portion of the Company’s product mix.  These applications represented 14%
of total systems sales in 1997. 

Hardware.  Total hardware revenue decreased by 27% in 1999, after decreasing by 10% in 1998 and increasing by 22% in
1997.  Workstation and server unit volume decreased 17% in 1999, after increases of 6% and 67% in 1998 and 1997, respectively,
while workstation and server revenue declined by 28% and 9% in 1999 and 1998, respectively, and increased by 6% in 1997.
Price competition continues to erode per unit selling prices, and volumes in 1998 and 1999 were suppressed by the aforemen-
tioned factors associated with the Intel lawsuit.  Sales of peripheral hardware products decreased by 25% and 11% in 1999 and
1998, respectively, after increasing by 64% in 1997.  Both the 1997 increase and the 1998 decline relate to sales of graphics cards
and storage devices.  Sales of the Company’s first add-in 3D graphics cards, which began shipping during the third quarter of
1996, were initially strong and grew throughout 1997.  However, 1998 sales were below the Company’s expectations as the
products approached the end of their life cycle.  Graphics sales increased by 9% in 1999 with the availability of new products
based upon the Company’s Wildcat 3D graphics technology; however, this increase was more than offset by significant declines
in the Company’s sales of storage devices and memory and of Intel options and upgrades.  The Company’s systems are Windows
NT/Intel-based and have been since 1994.

Federal Government Sales.  Total revenue from the United States government was approximately $149 million in 1999,  $166
million in 1998, and $177 million in 1997, representing approximately 16% of total revenues in all three years.  In 1998 and 1999,
U.S. government orders and revenues were characterized by weakened demand for the Company’s hardware product offerings,
due partially to increasing price competition within the industry.  The Company sells to the U.S. government under long-term
contractual arrangements, primarily indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity and cost-plus award fee contracts, and through
commercial sales of products not covered by long-term contracts.  Approximately 52% of the Company’s 1999 federal government
revenues were earned under long-term contracts.  The Company believes its relationship with the federal government to be good.



While it is fully anticipated that these contracts will remain in effect through their expiration, the contracts are subject to termi-
nation at the election of the government.  Any loss of a significant government contract would have an adverse impact on the
results of operations of the Company.

MicroStation.  Through the end of 1994, the Company had an exclusive license agreement with BSI, an approximately 33%-
owned affiliate of the Company, under which the Company distributed MicroStation, a software product developed and
maintained by BSI and utilized in many of the Company’s software applications.  As a result of settlement of a dispute between
the companies relative to the exclusivity of the Company’s distribution license, effective January 1, 1995, the Company has a
nonexclusive license to sell MicroStation via its direct sales force and to sell MicroStation via its indirect sales channels if
MicroStation is sold with other Intergraph products.  See “Arbitration Settlements” preceding for a description of past arbitra-
tion proceedings between the Company and BSI.

The Company’s sales of MicroStation have declined each year since the 1994 change in the license agreement, by approximately
34% in 1997, 46% in 1998, and 43% in 1999.  In 1998 and 1999, MicroStation sales represented 8% and 5% of total software
revenue, respectively.  The Company is unable to predict the level of MicroStation sales that will occur in the future, but it is
likely that such sales will be further reduced.

Maintenance and Services.  Maintenance and services revenue consists of revenues from maintenance of Company systems
and from Company provided services, primarily training and consulting.  These forms of revenue from continuing operations
totaled $291 million in 1999, flat with the 1998 level after declines of 10% and 9% in 1998 and 1997, respectively.  Maintenance
revenues totaled $187 million in 1999, down 8% after declines of 15% and 13% in 1998 and 1997, respectively.  The trend in the
industry toward lower priced products and longer warranty periods has resulted in reduced levels of maintenance revenue, and
the Company believes this trend will continue in the future.  Services revenue represented 11% of total revenues in 1999, an
increase of two percentage points from the previous year.  Growth in services revenue has partially offset the decline in mainte-
nance revenue.  The Company is endeavoring to grow its services business and has redirected the efforts of its hardware
maintenance organization to focus increasingly on systems integration.  Revenues from these services, however, typically
produce lower gross margins than maintenance revenues.

Gross Margin. The Company’s total gross margin on revenues from continuing operations was 31.7% in 1999, up .7 points
after declines of 4.3 points and 1.1 points in 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Margin on systems revenues from continuing operations improved 1.4 points in 1999 after declining 5.6 points and 1.1 points in
1998 and 1997, respectively.  Competitive pricing conditions in the industry have acted to reduce systems margins generally.  In
1997 and 1998, margins were also negatively impacted by an increasing hardware content in the product mix.   Margin was
further reduced in 1997 by a decrease in the mix of international systems revenues to total Company systems revenues, due in
part to strengthening of the U.S. dollar in international markets, primarily Europe and Asia.  In 1998, margin was negatively
impacted by unfavorable volume related manufacturing variances and inventory revaluations incurred prior to the outsourcing
of the Company’s manufacturing to SCI in fourth quarter 1998.  In 1999, the impact of a $7 million inventory write-off incurred
in connection with the Company’s decision to exit the PC and generic server business (see “Nonrecurring Operating Charges”
preceding) was offset by an increased software content in the product and a decline in unfavorable manufacturing variances as
the result of the outsourcing to SCI.   Systems margins continue to be negatively impacted by strengthening of the U.S. dollar in
international markets, primarily Europe, and by the loss of volume resulting from the dispute with Intel. 

In general, the Company’s systems margin may be improved by a higher software content in the product, a weaker dollar in
international markets, a higher mix of international systems sales to total systems sales, and reductions in prices of component
parts, which generally tend to decline over time in the industry.  Systems margins may be lowered by price competition, a
higher hardware content in the product mix, a stronger U.S. dollar in international markets, the effects of technological
changes on the value of existing inventories, and a higher mix of federal government sales, which generally produce lower
margins than commercial sales.  While the Company is unable to predict the effects that many of these factors may have on its
systems margin, it expects continuing pressure on its systems margin as the result of increasing industry price competition.

Margin on maintenance and services revenues from continuing operations declined by 1.4 points in 1999 after declines of 1.3
points in 1998 and .6 points in 1997.  The margin declines over the past three years have resulted primarily from declining
maintenance revenues.  In 1999, declining maintenance revenues and margins were partially offset by improved professional
services margins.  Professional services revenues have increased by 17% from the 1998 level without a proportional increase in
costs.  The Company continues to monitor its maintenance and services costs closely and has taken certain measures, including 
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reductions in headcount, to align these costs with current revenue levels.  The Company believes that the trend in the industry
toward lower priced products and longer warranty periods will continue to curtail its maintenance revenue, which will pressure
maintenance margin in the absence of corresponding cost reductions.

The industry in which the Company competes is characterized by rapid technological change.  This technological change is an
important consideration in the Company’s overall inventory management program, in which the Company endeavors to
purchase only inventory supported by firm customer orders and parts as spares for the customer contracted maintenance of
systems in its installed customer base.  In fourth quarter 1998, the Company sold substantially all of its U.S. manufacturing
assets to SCI, and SCI assumed responsibility for the manufacturing of substantially all of the Company’s hardware products.
(See “SCI” preceding for a complete description of this transaction.)  Effective inventory and purchasing management remains
necessary in order for the Company to provide SCI with accurate and timely information regarding its needs.  Any unantici-
pated change in technology or an inability of the Company to accurately forecast its manufacturing needs could significantly
and adversely affect gross margins and reported results of operations.

Operating Expenses (exclusive of nonrecurring operating charges). Operating expenses for continuing
operations declined by 14% in 1999, 6% in 1998, and 1% in 1997.  In response to the level of its operating losses, the Company
has reduced the total number of its employees by 32% during the three year period ended December 31, 1999.

Product development expense declined by 18% in 1999 after declines of 15% and 4% in the two preceding years.  Employee
headcount in the development area has been significantly reduced over the last three years through reductions in force, attri-
tion, and sales of unprofitable business operations.  Additionally, 1998 and 1999 expenses were reduced due to additional
software development projects whose cost qualifies for capitalization. 

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred after the technological feasibility of new software products has been established
and amortizes those costs against revenues later generated by those products.  Though the Company regularly reviews its capital-
ized development costs to ensure recognition of any decline in value, it is possible that for any given product revenues will not
materialize in amounts anticipated due to industry conditions that include intense price and performance competition, or that
product lives will be reduced due to shorter product cycles.  Should these events occur, the carrying amount of capitalized devel-
opment costs would be reduced, producing adverse effects on the Company’s systems margin and results of operations.

Sales and marketing expense declined by 22% in 1999, after declining by 6% in 1998 and 2% in 1997.  Expenses in all three
years were reduced by the strengthening of the U.S. dollar against international currencies, primarily in Europe.  In 1997,
expenses were significantly reduced due to the sale of two unprofitable business units, but the resulting benefits were partially
offset by increased trade show activity and advertising expenses for the Company’s new products.  The 1998 decline was prima-
rily due to across the board expense reductions in Europe resulting from restructuring actions taken in the first quarter (see
“Nonrecurring Operating Charges” preceding).  Additional headcount reductions in late 1998 and throughout 1999 have
resulted in significant across the board expense declines worldwide. 

General and administrative expense increased by 8% in 1999 after remaining basically flat for the previous two years.  In 1997
and 1998, increases in the Company’s legal expenses (see “Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties” preceding) were offset
by strengthening of the U.S. dollar in the Company’s international markets and, in 1998, by benefits resulting from European
headcount reductions.  The expense increase in 1999 resulted from increased bad debt expenses in the U.S. and continuing
growth in the Company’s legal fees, partially offset by across the board declines in all other expense categories.  The Company
expects its general and administrative expense to remain high in 2000 as additional legal expenses are incurred in preparation
for the Intel trial.  Additionally, the Company is anticipating a temporary duplication of administrative expenses in connection
with its efforts to verticalize its operating segments and decentralize portions of the corporate finance and administrative
function.  The Company expects that these expenses will decline by the end of 2000.

Nonoperating Income and Expense. Interest expense for continuing operations was $5.7 million in 1999, $7.4 million
in 1998, and $6.6 million in 1997.  In 1999, the Company’s average outstanding debt declined due primarily to repayment of
borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility utilizing proceeds from sales of various businesses and assets.  See
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” following for a discussion of the Company’s current financing arrangements.

In 1997, the Company sold a stock investment in a publicly traded affiliate, resulting in a gain of $4.9 million.  This gain is
included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1997 consolidated statement of operations.



In first quarter 1998, the Company sold its Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines to Electronic Data
Systems Corporation and its Unigraphics Solutions, Inc. subsidiary for $105 million in cash.  The Company recorded a gain on
this transaction of $102.8 million.  This gain is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1998 consolidated statement of
operations.  Full year 1997 revenues and operating loss for these product lines were $35.2 million and $4.1 million, respectively.
The Company estimates the sale of this business has resulted in an annual improvement in its operating results of approxi-
mately $5 million.

In second quarter 1998, the Company sold the assets of its printed circuit board manufacturing facility for $16 million in cash.
The Company recorded a gain on this transaction of $8.3 million.  This gain is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1998
consolidated statement of operations.  The Company is now outsourcing its printed circuit board needs.  This operational
change did not materially impact the Company’s results of operations in 1998.  

In second quarter 1999, the Company sold InterCAP Graphics Systems, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, to Micrografx Inc., a
global provider of enterprise graphics software, for $12.2 million, consisting of $3.9 million in cash received at closing, deferred
payments received in September and October 1999 totaling $2.5 million, and a $5.8 million convertible subordinated debenture
due in March, 2002.  The resulting gain on this transaction of $11.5 million is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1999
consolidated statement of operations.  InterCAP’s revenues and losses for 1998 were $4.7 million and $1.1 million, respectively
($3.6 million and $1.9 million for 1997).  Assets of the subsidiary at December 31, 1998 totaled $1.6 million.  InterCAP did not
have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations for the period in 1999 prior to the sale.

“Other income (expense) - net” in the consolidated statements of operations consists primarily of interest income, foreign
exchange gains (losses), equity in the earnings of investee companies, and other miscellaneous items of nonoperating income
and expense. 

Impact of Currency Fluctuations and Currency Risk Management. International markets, particularly
Europe and Asia, continue in importance to the industry and to each of the Company’s operating segments.  The Company’s
operations are subject to and may be adversely affected by a variety of risks inherent in doing business internationally, such as
government policy restrictions, currency exchange fluctuations, and other factors.  

Fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar in international markets can have a significant impact on the Company’s results of
operations.  For 1999, approximately 52% of the Company’s revenues were derived from customers outside the United States,
primarily through subsidiary operations.  Most subsidiaries sell to customers and incur and pay operating expenses in local
currency.  These local currency revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes.  A stronger U.S.
dollar will decrease the level of reported U.S. dollar orders and revenues, decrease the dollar gross margin, and decrease
reported dollar operating expenses of the international subsidiaries.  Currency fluctuations did not have a significant impact on
the Company’s 1999 results of operations as strengthening of the U.S. dollar in Europe and other international regions was
offset by weakening of the dollar in the Company’s Asian markets.   The Company estimates that the net strengthening of the
U.S. dollar in its international markets adversely impacted its results of operations by approximately $.02, $.10, and $.30 per
share in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively.  To illustrate the sensitivity of the Company’s results of operations to changes in
international currency exchange rates, the Company estimates that the result of a uniform 10% strengthening in the value of
the dollar relative to the currencies in which the Company’s sales are denominated would result in a decrease in earnings of
approximately $10 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.  Likewise, a uniform 10% weakening in the value of the
dollar would result in increased earnings of approximately $9 million.  This calculation assumes that each exchange rate would
change in the same direction relative to the U.S. dollar.  In addition to the direct effects of changes in exchange rates, exchange
rate fluctuations may also affect the volume of sales and foreign currency sales prices.  The Company’s estimation of the effects
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates does not consider potential changes in sales levels or local currency prices.  The
Company’s income statement exposure to currency fluctuations has declined by approximately 18% from the prior year level as
the result of declining activity levels in its international regions, related to the sales volume decline in 1999.  See note 12 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of the Company’s revenues by geographic area.

The Company conducts business in all major markets outside the U.S., but the most significant of these operations with respect
to currency risk are located in Europe and Asia. Local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s European
subsidiaries.  The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all other international subsidiaries.  With respect to the currency
exposures in these regions, the objective of the Company is to protect against financial statement volatility arising from changes
in exchange rates with respect to amounts denominated for balance sheet purposes in a currency other than the functional
currency of the local entity.  The Company will therefore enter into forward exchange contracts related to certain balance sheet 
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items, primarily intercompany receivables, payables, and formalized intercompany debt, when a specific risk has been identi-
fied.  Periodic changes in the value of these contracts offset exchange rate related changes in the financial statement value of
these balance sheet items.  Forward exchange contracts, generally less than three months in duration, are purchased with
maturities reflecting the expected settlement dates of the balance sheet items being hedged, and only in amounts sufficient to
offset possibly significant currency rate related changes in the recorded values of these balance sheet items, which represent a
calculable exposure for the Company from period to period.  Since this risk is calculable, and these contracts are purchased
only in offsetting amounts, neither the contracts themselves nor the exposed foreign currency denominated balance sheet items
are likely to have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.  The Company does not
generally hedge exposures related to foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities that are not of an intercompany
nature, unless a significant risk has been identified.  It is possible the Company could incur significant exchange gains or losses
in the case of significant, abnormal fluctuations in a particular currency.  By policy, the Company is prohibited from market
speculation via forward exchange contracts and therefore does not take currency positions exceeding its known financial state-
ment exposures, and does not otherwise trade in currencies.  

In 1999 and 1997, the Company incurred net foreign exchange losses from its continuing operations of $1.3 million and $2.2
million, respectively.  (In 1998, the Company realized a net exchange gain of $.4 million from its continuing operations.)  At
December 31, 1999 and 1998, the Company had outstanding forward exchange contracts with values of approximately $.8 million
and $7.6 million, respectively.  The fair values of those contracts approximated the original contract amounts based on the
insignificant amounts the Company would have paid or received upon transferring the contracts to a third party at those dates.
Net cash flow from forward contract activity, consisting of realized gains and losses from settlement of exposed assets and liabilities
at exchange rates in effect at the settlement date rather than at the time of recording, settlement of the forward contracts
purchased to mitigate these exposures, and payment of bank fees on the forward contracts was not significant for any year in the
three year period ended December 31, 1999.  Deferred gains and losses as of December 31, 1999 and 1998 were not significant.

At December 31, 1999 and 1998, the Company’s only outstanding forward exchange contracts related to formalized intercom-
pany loans between the Company’s European subsidiaries and are immaterial to the Company’s present financial position.  The
Company is not currently hedging any of its foreign currency risks in the Asia Pacific region or its U.S. exposures related to
foreign currency denominated intercompany loans.  To illustrate the sensitivity of the Company’s result of operations to changes
in exchange rates for international currencies underlying its intercompany loans, the Company estimates that a uniform 10%
strengthening or weakening in the value of the dollar relative to the currencies in which such intercompany loans are denomi-
nated at December 31, 1999 would not result in a significant loss or improvement in earnings.  This calculation assumes that
each exchange rate would change in the same direction relative to the U.S. dollar.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks related to certain of its financial instruments, primarily debt securities held
by its European subsidiaries, long-term mortgages on certain of its European facilities, and an Australian term loan.  The net
effect of a uniform 10% change in exchange rates relative to the currencies in which these financial instruments are denomi-
nated would not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations.

Euro Conversion.  On January 1, 1999, eleven member countries of the European Monetary Union (EMU) fixed the conversion
rates of their national currencies to a single common currency, the “Euro”.  The national currencies of the participating
countries will continue to exist through July 1, 2002, and Euro currency will begin to circulate on January 1, 2002.  All of the
Company’s financial systems currently accommodate the Euro, and during 1999 the Company conducted business in Euros
with its customers and vendors who chose to do so without encountering significant problems.  While the Company continues to
evaluate the potential impacts of the common currency, it at present has not identified significant risks related to the Euro and
does not anticipate that full Euro conversion in 2002 will have a material impact on its results of operations or financial condi-
tion.  To date, the conversion to one common currency has not impacted the Company’s pricing in its European markets. 

See Notes 1 and 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information related to management of currency risk.

Income Taxes. The Company incurred pretax losses from continuing operations of $73.1 million in 1999, $.7 million in
1998 and $49.5 million in 1997.  Income tax expense for these years resulted primarily from taxes on individually profitable
subsidiaries. 

Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contains a reconciliation of statutory income tax benefit to actual income
tax expense for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999 and includes further details of the Company’s tax
position, including net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.



Results by Operating Segment: Effective January 1, 1998, the Company divided its business into four reporting segments
for operational and management purposes:  Intergraph Computer Systems (“ICS”), Intergraph Public Safety, Inc. (“IPS”), the
Software and Federal Systems (“Federal”) business (collectively, the Software and Federal businesses form what is termed
“Intergraph”), and VeriBest, Inc.  (“VeriBest”).  In fourth quarter 1999, the Company sold VeriBest to Mentor Graphics
Corporation.  Accordingly, VeriBest’s results of operations through the date of sale have been classified as discontinued operations
in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999 and have
been excluded from the Company’s segment disclosures.  For further information regarding this sale and VeriBest’s operating
results for the periods presented, see “Discontinued Operation” preceding and Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.  See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details of the Company’s segment reporting.

ICS supplies high performance Windows NT-based graphics workstations, 3D graphic subsystems, and specialty servers.  IPS
develops, markets, and implements systems for the public safety and utilities industries.  Intergraph supplies software and
solutions, including hardware purchased from ICS, consulting, and services to the process and building and infrastructure indus-
tries and provides services and specialized engineering and information technology to support Federal government programs.

The Company evaluates performance of its operating segments based on revenue and income from operations.  Sales among
the operating segments, the most significant of which are sales of hardware products and maintenance from ICS to the other
segments, are accounted for under a transfer pricing policy.  Transfer prices approximate prices that would be charged for the
same or similar property to similarly situated unrelated buyers.  In the U.S., intersegment sales of products and services to be
used for internal purposes are charged at cost.  For international subsidiaries, transfer price is charged on intersegment sales of
products and services to be used for either internal purposes or sale to customers.  Certain expenses, primarily general and
administrative expenses, not directly attributable to an operating segment are considered corporate in nature and are not
charged to any operating segment.  In addition, gains on sales of assets and nonrecurring charges to operations (see
“Summary” section above), which were significant in 1999 and 1998, are not credited or charged to the operating segments.

Effective January 1, 1999, the Utilities business of Intergraph Software was merged into IPS.  Additionally, in 1999, hardware
maintenance revenues, previously attributed exclusively to ICS, were attributed to the selling segment entities with ICS receiving
transfer price revenue for services provided to other operating segments.  The Company’s 1998 segment information has been
restated to reflect both of these operational changes.

Prior to 1998, the Company utilized several variations of the current model for evaluation of the performance of its operating
segments, depending on the Company’s structure and its business environment at the time.  Segment financial information for
years prior to 1998 has not been restated to conform to the current model because it is impractical to do so.

In 1999, ICS incurred an operating loss of $44.8 million on revenues of $332.1 million, compared to a 1998 operating loss of
$71.2 million on revenues of $447.1 million.  These operating losses exclude the impact of certain nonrecurring income and
operating expense items associated with ICS’s operations, including 1998 gains totaling $9.8 million on the sales of its printed
circuit board facility and manufacturing inventory and assets, and nonrecurring operating charges of $.8 million and $4.5
million in 1998 and 1999, respectively, primarily for employee termination costs.  ICS’s operating loss for 1999 included a $7
million inventory write-off resulting from the segment’s exit from the PC and generic server business.  Excluding this charge,
the 1999 operating loss was $37.8 million, reflecting a $33.4 million improvement from the prior year.  This improvement
resulted primarily from a 32% decline in operating expenses as the result of headcount reductions achieved in 1998 and 1999.
ICS’s headcount was reduced by approximately 52% during the two year period ended December 31, 1999.  ICS’s 1998 and 1999
results of operations were significantly adversely impacted by factors associated with the Company’s dispute with Intel, the
effects of which included lost momentum, lost revenue and margin, and increased operating expenses, primarily for marketing
and public relations expenses.  (See “Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties” preceding for a complete discussion of the
Company’s dispute with Intel and its effects on the operations of ICS and the Company).  ICS’s 1998 margins were also severely
impacted by volume and inventory value related manufacturing variances incurred prior to the outsourcing of its manufactur-
ing to SCI in fourth quarter 1998.  In 1999, improvements in ICS’s expense levels were more than offset by declining sales
volume as demand weakened for the segment’s hardware products.  In response to its continuing operating losses, in third
quarter 1999, ICS exited the PC and generic server businesses and narrowed its focus to workstations, specialty servers, digital
video products and 3D graphics cards.  The Company estimates that this change in ICS’s product offerings will reduce its
annual systems revenues by approximately $70 to $80 million.  The associated margins for these products range from 15.5% to
17.5%.  The segment has announced a new line of workstations and specialty servers and is endeavoring to replace revenue
associated with its discontinued products with increased sales volume of its new offerings.  The Company is also actively
engaged in discussions with potential business partners for ICS and is considering all other available alternatives to help stem
the losses in this business unit. 
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In 1999, IPS earned operating income of $10.8 million on revenues of $96.3 million, compared to 1998 operating income of $6.2
million on revenues of $93.4 million.  The improvement in 1999 resulted primarily from a 6 point increase in gross margin,
largely due to improved margins on professional services projects.  This margin improvement was partially offset by a 10%
increase in operating expenses, due in part to increased headcount.  Growth in IPS’s revenues and operating income was limited
somewhat in 1999 due to a slowdown in large installations resulting from customer and market concerns about potential year
2000 computing problems generally.  Additional growth is expected in 2000 as more of these systems are brought online.

In 1999, the Software business earned operating income of $9.2 million on revenues of $476.4 million, compared to 1998
operating income of $13.8 million on revenues of $531.5 million.  The declines in revenues and operating income from the
1998 level resulted primarily from a 17% decline in systems revenue, due in part to weakened demand for ICS hardware
products, while margins earned on systems sales remained relatively flat with the 1998 level at 39%.  The negative impact of the
revenue decline was partially offset by a 16% decline in sales and marketing expenses as the operating segment reduced and
reorganized its sales force to align expenses with the volume of revenue generated.  Current year operating income excludes the
impact of certain nonrecurring income and operating expense items associated with Software operations, including the
arbitration settlement charge of $8.6 million, the gain on sale of InterCAP of $11.5 million, and nonrecurring operating charges
of approximately $5.8 million, primarily for employee severance costs.   Operating income for 1998 excludes the $102.8 million
gain on sale of the business unit’s Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines and nonrecurring operating
charges of $14.6 million, primarily for asset write-offs and employee terminations.  

In 1999, Federal earned operating income of $12.4 million on revenues of $159.8 million, compared to a 1998 operating loss of
$3.0 million on revenues of $171.5 million.  The improvement in 1999 resulted primarily from a 30% decline in operating
expenses, due in part to headcount reductions and to an increase in shipbuilding software development costs qualifying for
capitalization.  Despite the revenue decline, margins improved by 4 points from the 1998 level due primarily to a 4 point
increase in margins earned on systems sales.  Revenues and margins in both 1998 and 1999 were adversely impacted by
weakened demand for the Company’s hardware product offerings.  Effective March 2000, the Federal business was renamed
Intergraph Government Solutions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 1999, cash totaled $88.5 million, down $7 million from year-end 1998.  Cash consumed by operations totaled
$9.7 million in 1999, $31.1 million in 1998, and $20.9 million in 1997, primarily reflecting the negative cash flow effects of
operating losses.  Operating cash consumption in 1999 included the payment of $12 million to Bentley Systems, Inc. (see
“Arbitration Settlements” preceding), payments to SCI of $10.2 million to purchase unused inventory (see “SCI” preceding), and
severance payments to employees of approximately $9 million.  In 1997, an inventory build-up consumed approximately $16
million as a result of an anticipated increase in hardware unit sales volume and customer demand for faster delivery of products. 

Net cash provided by investing activities totaled $25.5 million and $99.6 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively, compared to a
net investing consumption of cash of $30.7 million in 1997.  Investing activities in 1999 included $54.1 million in proceeds from
sales of various businesses and assets.  Investing activities in 1998 included $160.5 million in proceeds from sales of various
businesses and assets, including the Company’s Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines, its manufacturing
inventory and assets, and its printed circuit board manufacturing facility, and an investment of $26.3 million for the purchase
of Zydex software rights.  Other significant investing activities in 1999 included capital expenditures of $10.2 million ($17.3
million in 1998 and $24.8 million in 1997), primarily for Intergraph products used in hardware and software development and
sales and marketing activities, expenditures for capitalizable software development of $20.7 million ($15.7 million in 1998 and
$10.6 million in 1997), and $11.7 million contributed by the minority interest partner to the start-up of the Z/I Imaging
business.  (See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Net cash used for financing activities totaled $21 million and $19.3 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively, compared to a net
financing generation of cash of $48.4 million in 1997.  Net debt repayments were $23.6 million and $22.3 million in 1999 and
1998, respectively, while 1997 sources of cash included net borrowings of $44.9 million.

The Company’s average collection period for accounts receivable in 1999 was approximately 84 days, representing a slight
increase from the prior year.  Approximately 68% of the Company’s 1999 revenues were derived from international customers and
the U.S. government, both of which traditionally carry longer collection periods.  The Company continues to experience slow
collections throughout the Middle East region, particularly in Saudi Arabia.  Total accounts receivable from Middle Eastern
customers was approximately $20 million at December 31, 1999 and $23 million at December 31, 1998.  Total U.S. government
accounts receivable was $33 million at December 31, 1999 ($55 million at December 31, 1998).  The Company endeavors to
enforce its payment terms with these and other customers, and grants extended payment terms only in very limited circumstances.
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The Company expects that capital expenditures will require $10 million to $15 million in 2000, primarily for Intergraph
products used in product development and sales and marketing activities.  The Company’s revolving credit agreement, among
other restrictions, limits the level of the Company’s capital expenditures.

Under the Company’s January 1997 six year fixed term loan and revolving credit agreement, as amended, available borrowings
are determined by the amounts of eligible assets of the Company (the “borrowing base”), as defined in the agreement, primarily
accounts receivable, with maximum availability of $100 million.  The $25 million term loan portion of the agreement is due at
expiration of the agreement.  Borrowings are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the Company’s assets in the U.S. and
certain international receivables.  The rate of interest on all borrowings under the agreement is the greater of 7% or the Norwest
Bank Minnesota National Association base rate of interest (8.5% at December 31, 1999) plus .625%.  The amended agreement
contains provisions which will lower the interest rate upon achievement of sustained profitability by the Company.  The agree-
ment requires the Company to pay a facility fee at an annual rate of .15% of the amount available under the credit line, an
unused credit line fee at an annual rate of .25% of the average unused portion of the revolving credit line, a letter of credit fee at
an annual rate of 1.5% of the undrawn amount of all outstanding letters of credit, and a monthly agency fee.  At December 31,
1999, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $27.5 million, the $25 million term loan portion of which was classified as
long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet, and an additional $32.4 million of the available credit line was allocated to
support the Company’s letters of credit and forward exchange contracts.  As of this same date, the borrowing base, representing
the maximum available credit under the line, was approximately $69.3 million ($68.5 at February 29, 2000).

The term loan and revolving credit agreement contains certain financial covenants of the Company, including minimum net
worth, minimum current ratio, and maximum levels of capital expenditures, and restrictive covenants that limit or prevent
various business transactions (including repurchases of the Company’s stock, dividend payments, mergers, acquisitions of or
investments in other businesses, and disposal of assets including individual businesses, subsidiaries, and divisions) and limit or
prevent certain other business changes without approval.  The amended agreement has reduced the Company’s net worth
covenant to $235 million at December 31, 1999, with subsequent reductions to $216 million at March 31, 2000 and $200 million
at June 30, 2000.  Additionally, the amended agreement requires the Company to retain the services of an investment banking
firm to advise the Company regarding potential partnering arrangements and other alternatives for its computer hardware
business.

In fourth quarter 1999, the Company entered into an agreement for the sale and leaseback of its European headquarters office
building in the Netherlands.  The lease has an initial term of ten years with an early termination option after five years.  The
lease is accounted for as an operating lease in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13,
Accounting for Leases. The gain realized on the sale of approximately $4.2 million has been deferred and will be credited to
income over the ten year lease term.  Payments under the lease, which are denominated in Dutch Guilders, approximate $1.2
million per year.  Proceeds from the sale approximated $13.7 million, $4.2 million of which was used to pay off the mortgage on
the building. 

At December 31, 1999, the Company had approximately $53 million in debt on which interest is charged under various floating
rate arrangements, primarily its six year term loan and revolving credit agreement, mortgages, and an Australian term loan
(see Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).  The Company is exposed to market risk of future increases in inter-
est rates on these loans, with the exception of the Australian term loan, on which the Company has entered into an interest rate
swap agreement.  To illustrate the sensitivity of the Company’s results of operations to changes in interest rates on its debt, the
Company estimates that its results of operations would not be materially affected by a two point increase or decrease in the
average interest rates related to its floating rate debt.  This hypothetical change in rates was determined based on the trend of
the Company’s actual rates over the past four years.  The Company’s estimate assumes a level of debt consistent with the
December 31, 1999 level and does not consider the effects that further operating losses, if any, will have on the balance of debt
outstanding.  The Company’s interest rate exposure has not changed significantly from the December 31, 1998 level as the
decline in its floating rate debt resulted primarily from payments on its revolving credit facility which, due to its short term
nature, does not represent a material interest rate exposure for the Company.

Although the Company did not generate adequate cash to fund its operations for 1999, it did begin to generate positive cash flow
from operations in fourth quarter 1999 as the result of improved accounts receivable collections and operating expense declines.
The Company expects continued improvement in its operating cash flows in 2000 as a result of headcount reductions and other
expense savings actions taken during 1999.  The Company believes that the combination of improved cash flow from operations,
its existing cash balances, and cash available under its amended revolving credit agreement will be adequate to meet cash
requirements for 2000.  However, the Company must increase sales volume and continue to align its operating expenses with the 
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level of revenue being generated if it is to fund its operations and build cash reserves without reliance on funds from external
financing.  For the longer term, the Company anticipates no significant nonoperating issues that will require the use of cash, and
correspondingly the adequacy of its cash reserves will be dependent on improvement in its operating results.

FOURTH QUARTER 1999

Revenues from continuing operations in the fourth quarter were $222.6 million, down 20% from fourth quarter 1998.  The
Company earned net income of $3.6 million ($.07 per share) for the quarter, compared to a fourth quarter 1998 net loss of
$20.9 million ($.43 per share).  Loss from continuing operations per share improved from $.40 in fourth quarter 1998 to $.20 in
fourth quarter 1999 due to a 3.4 point increase in gross margin and a 17% decline in operating expenses.   Fourth quarter 1998
systems margin was negatively impacted by expenses of approximately $7 million ($.14 per share) related to the Company’s
transition to outsourcing its manufacturing operations.  The operating expense decline was concentrated primarily in the sales
and marketing area and correlates directly to the 15% decline in headcount from the prior year level.  The fourth quarter 1999
loss from continuing operations was offset by the $14.4 million ($.29 per share) gain on the sale of VeriBest.  Exchange rate
fluctuations did not have a significant impact on fourth quarter 1999 results of operations.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
_________________________________________________________________________
December 31, 1999~ 1998~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands except share and per share amounts)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $^88,513~ $^95,473~
Accounts receivable, net 258,768~ 312,123~
Inventories 35,918~ 38,001~
Other current assets 28,744~ 48,928~_________________________________________________________________________

Total current assets 411,943~ 494,525~
Investments in affiliates 9,940~ 12,841~
Other assets 68,154~ 61,240~
Property, plant, and equipment, net 94,907~ 127,368~_________________________________________________________________________

Total Assets $584,944~ $695,974~__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Trade accounts payable $^50,963~ $^64,545~
Accrued compensation 35,848~ 42,445~
Other accrued expenses 71,052~ 75,038~
Billings in excess of sales 66,051~ 68,137~
Income taxes payable 8,175~ 4,122~
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt 11,547~ 23,718~_________________________________________________________________________

Total current liabilities 243,636~ 278,005~
Deferred income taxes 2,620~ 3,142~
Long-term debt 51,379~ 59,495~
Other noncurrent liabilities 10,609~ —~_________________________________________________________________________

Total liabilities 308,244~ 340,642~_________________________________________________________________________
Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, par value $.10 per share — 
100,000,000 shares authorized;  
57,361,362 shares issued 5,736~ 5,736~

Additional paid-in capital 216,943~ 222,705~
Retained earnings 178,231~ 249,808~
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)- 

cumulative translation adjustment (5,506) 4,161~_________________________________________________________________________
395,404~ 482,410~

Less – cost of  8,145,149 treasury shares
at December 31, 1999, and 8,719,612
treasury shares at December 31, 1998 (118,704) (127,078)_________________________________________________________________________

Total shareholders’ equity 276,700~ 355,332~_________________________________________________________________________
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $584,944~ $695,974~__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Revenues
Systems $|623,451~ $^|712,916~ $^|770,384~
Maintenance and services 291,429~ 292,091~ 325,241~_________________________________________________________________________

Total revenues 914,880~ 1,005,007~ 1,095,625~_________________________________________________________________________
Cost of revenues

Systems 436,254~ 508,836~ 506,752~
Maintenance and services 188,691~ 185,028~ 201,655~_________________________________________________________________________

Total cost of revenues 624,945~ 693,864~ 708,407~_________________________________________________________________________
Gross profit 289,935~ 311,143~ 387,218~

Product development 62,638~ 76,818~ 90,298~
Sales and marketing 169,805~ 219,044~ 233,041~
General and administrative 109,336~ 100,936~ 101,026~
Nonrecurring operating charges 15,596~ 15,343~ 1,095~_________________________________________________________________________

Loss from operations (67,440) (100,998) (38,242)

Gains on sales of assets 11,505~ 112,533~ 4,858~
Arbitration settlements (^8,562) —~ (^6,126)
Interest expense (^5,663) (^^7,441) (^6,579)
Other income (expense) — net (^2,901) (^^4,822) (^3,401)_________________________________________________________________________

Loss from continuing operations
before income taxes (73,061) (^ ^^728) (49,490)

Income tax expense (^5,500) (^^6,000) (^4,000)_________________________________________________________________________
Loss from continuing operations (78,561) (^^6,728) (53,490)

Gain on sale of discontinued operation, net of income taxes 14,384~ —~ —~
Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes (^7,400) (^12,906) (16,747)_________________________________________________________________________

Net loss $ (71,577) $ (^19,634) $ (70,237)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Income (loss) per share-basic and diluted:

Continuing operations $ (^^1.60) $ (^^^^.14) $ (^^1.11)
Discontinued operations .14~ (^^^^.27) (^^^.35)_________________________________________________________________________

Net loss $ (^^1.46) $ (^^^^.41) $ (^^1.46)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted 48,906~ 48,376~ 47,945~__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999 1998 1997________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Cash Provided By (Used For):
Operating Activities:

Net loss $(71,577) $(^19,634) $(70,237)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used for operating activities:

Depreciation 21,228~ 29,446~ 37,283~
Amortization 26,878~ 25,274~ 23,049~
Noncash portion of arbitration settlements 3,530~ —~ 5,835~
Noncash portion of nonrecurring operating charges 9,614~ 11,506~ —~
Deferred income tax expense 45~ 95~ 1,555~
Gains on sales of assets (25,889) (112,533) (  4,858)
Net changes in current assets and liabilities 26,490~ 34,738~ (13,573)________________________________________________________________________
Net cash used for operating activities (^9,681) (^31,108) (20,946)________________________________________________________________________

Investing Activities:
Net proceeds from sales of assets 54,056~ 160,487~ 5,749~
Contributions from minority interest partner 11,732~ —~ —~
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (10,221) (^17,264) (24,785)
Capitalized software development costs (20,656) (^15,738) (10,592)
Capitalized internal use software costs (^5,875) (^^^|802) (^^|644)
Purchase of software rights —~ (^26,292) —~
Other (^3,579) (^^^|757) ^(^^|394)________________________________________________________________________

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 25,457~ 99,634~ (30,666)________________________________________________________________________

Financing Activities:
Gross borrowings —~ 10,689~ 75,896~
Debt repayment (23,605) (^32,949) (30,950)
Proceeds of employee stock purchases and exercises 

of stock options 2,612~ 2,940~ 3,483~________________________________________________________________________
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities (20,993) (^19,320) 48,429~________________________________________________________________________

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (^1,743) (^^^|378) (^^|846)________________________________________________________________________
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (^6,960) 48,828~ (  4,029)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 95,473~ 46,645~ 50,674~________________________________________________________________________
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $̂ 88,513~ $  ~95,473~ $~46,645~________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
__________________________________________________________________________________

Accumulated
Additional Other Total

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity__________________________________________________________________________________

(In thousands except share amounts)

Balance at January 1, 1997 $5,736 $229,675~ $339,679~ $12,907~ $(140,734) $447,263~

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — —~ (70,237) —~ —~ (70,237)
Other comprehensive loss:

Net unrealized holding loss on securities 
of affiliate — —~ —~ (6,858) —~ (^6,858)

Foreign currency translation adjustments — —~ —~ (4,959) —~ (^4,959)____
Comprehensive loss — —~ —~ —~ —~ (82,054)________
Issuance of 432,263 shares under employee

stock purchase plan — (3,149) —~ —~ 6,301~ 3,152~
Issuance of 40,187 shares upon exercise of

stock options — (^|255) —~ —~ 586~ 331~
Other — ^|91~ —~ —~ —~ 91~__________________________________________________________________________________

Balance at December 31, 1997 5,736 226,362~ 269,442~ 1,090~ (133,847) 368,783~

Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss — —~ (19,634) —~ —~ (19,634)
Other comprehensive income -foreign 

currency translation adjustments — —~ —~ 3,071~ —~ 3,071~____
Comprehensive loss — —~ —~ —~ —~ (16,563)________
Issuance of 464,230 shares under employee

stock purchase plan — (3,829) —~ —~ 6,769~ 2,940~
Other — 172~ —~ —~ —~ 172~__________________________________________________________________________________

Balance at December 31, 1998 5,736 222,705~ 249,808~ 4,161~ (127,078) 355,332~

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — —~ (71,577) —~ —~ (71,577)
Other comprehensive loss:

Foreign currency translation adjustments — —~ —~ (9,340) —~ —~

Less: Net translation gain realized upon
sales of subsidiaries — —~ —~ (9,327) —~ —~~ _____

Net foreign currency translation adjustments — —~ —~ (9,667) —~ (89,667)_____ _____
Comprehensive loss — —~ —~ —~ —~ (81,244)__________
Issuance of 557,713 shares under employee  

stock purchase plan — (5,539) —~ —~ 8,130~ 2,591~
Issuance of 16,750 shares upon exercise of

stock options — (3,223) —~ —~ 6,244~ 2,921~__________________________________________________________________________________
Balance at December 31, 1999 $5,736 $216,943~ $178,231~ $(5,506) $(118,704) $276,700~____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Intergraph Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31,1999
Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies.
Basis of Presentation:  The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Intergraph Corporation and its
subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  As discussed in
Note 4, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. operating segment on October 31, 1999 and, accordingly, its operating results have
been removed from continuing operations and are reported as discontinued operations for all years presented.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and determine whether contin-
gent assets and liabilities, if any, are disclosed in the financial statements.  The ultimate resolution of issues requiring these
estimates and assumptions could differ significantly from the resolution currently anticipated by management and on which
the financial statements are based.

The Company’s continuing operations are divided into three separate business units for operational and management purposes:
Intergraph Computer Systems (“ICS”), Intergraph Public Safety, Inc. (“IPS”), and the Software and Federal Systems
(“Federal”) business (collectively, the Software and Federal businesses form what is termed “Intergraph”).  Effective March
2000, the Federal business was renamed Intergraph Government Solutions.  ICS supplies high performance Windows NT-based
graphics workstations, 3D graphics subsystems, and specialty servers.  IPS develops, markets, and implements systems for the
public safety and utilities industries.  Intergraph supplies software and solutions, including hardware, consulting, and services,
to the federal government and to the process and building and infrastructure industries.  The Company’s products are sold
worldwide, with United States and European revenues representing approximately 79% of total revenues for 1999.  See Note 12
for further information regarding the Company’s operating segments and the geographic markets it serves.

The Company’s hardware products and software applications are used for computer-aided design and engineering, mapping
and geographic information services, and technical information management in industries such as process plant design,
shipbuilding, utilities, communications, transportation, public safety, and local and federal government.

Cash Equivalents: The Company’s excess funds are generally invested in short-term, highly liquid, interest-bearing
securities, which may include short-term municipal bonds, time deposits, money market preferred stocks, commercial paper,
and U.S. government securities.  The Company’s investment policy limits the amount of credit exposure to any single issuer of
securities.  Cash equivalents are stated at fair market value based on quoted market prices.  Investments with original maturities
of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents for purposes of financial statement presentation.

The Company’s investments in debt securities are valued at fair market value with any unrealized gains and losses reported as a
component of shareholders’ equity, net of tax.  At December 31, 1999 and 1998, the Company held various debt securities within
three months of maturity at those dates, with fair market values of approximately $33,000,000 and $54,000,000, respectively.
Gross realized gains and losses on debt securities sold during the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 were not significant,
and there were no unrealized holding gains or losses on debt securities at December 31, 1999 or 1998.

The Company’s December 31, 1999 consolidated cash balance includes approximately $13,000,000 held by a 60%-owned
consolidated subsidiary. 

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market and are summarized as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________
December 31, 1999 1998_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Raw materials $^4,982 $^2,739
Work-in-process 13,645 3,594
Finished goods 5,895 15,597
Service spares 11,396 16,071_________________________________________________________________________
Totals $35,918 $38,001__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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On November 13, 1998, the Company sold substantially all of its U.S. manufacturing assets (including inventories with a book
value of approximately $60,000,000) to SCI Technology Inc. (“SCI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCI Systems, Inc., and SCI
assumed responsibility for manufacturing of substantially all of the Company’s hardware products.  On June 30, 1999, the
Company repurchased inventory from SCI having a value of approximately $10,200,000, the majority of which is classified as
raw materials and work-in-process.  For a complete description of these transactions, see “SCI” included in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on page 19 of this annual report.  

In third quarter 1999, as a result of the Company’s exit from the personal computer (“PC”) and generic server business, the
Company recorded an inventory write-down of approximately $7,000,000, primarily related to its finished goods inventory.  See
“Nonrecurring Operating Charges” included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report for further discussion.

The industry in which the Company competes is characterized by rapid technological change.  This technological change is an
important consideration in the Company’s overall inventory management program, in which the Company endeavors to carry
only parts and systems utilizable with the technology of its current product offerings and as spares for the contracted mainte-
nance of systems in its installed customer base.  The Company regularly estimates the degree of technological obsolescence in its
inventories and provides inventory reserves on that basis.  Though the Company believes it has adequately provided for any such
declines in inventory value to date, any unanticipated change in technology could significantly affect the value of the Company’s
inventories and thereby adversely affect gross margins and results of operations.  In addition, an inability by the Company to
accurately forecast its manufacturing requirements of SCI could adversely affect gross margin and results of operations.

Investments in Affiliates:  Investments in companies in which the Company believes it has the ability to influence
operations or finances are accounted for by the equity method.  Investments in companies in which the Company does not exert
such influence are accounted for at fair value if such values are readily determinable, and at cost if such values are not readily
determinable.  Effective January 1, 1998, the Company ceased accounting for its investment in Bentley Systems, Inc. (“BSI”)
under the equity method due to a lack of significant influence.  On April 1, 1999, as the result of an arbitration settlement with
BSI, the Company’s equity ownership in BSI was reduced from approximately 50% to 33%, and the book value of the
Company’s investment in BSI was reduced accordingly.  See Note 13 and “Arbitration Settlements” included in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report for further
discussion of the Company’s arbitration proceedings and business relationship with BSI.  The book value of the Company’s
investment in BSI was approximately $9,190,000 at December 31, 1999.  The Company is unable to determine the fair value of
this investment.

During 1997, the Company sold its stock investment in a publicly traded affiliate at a gain of $4,858,000.  At January 1, 1997,
the unrealized gain on this investment resulting from periodic mark-to-market adjustments totaled $6,858,000.  This unreal-
ized gain is included in “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)” in the consolidated statements of shareholder’s
equity as of that date. 

Property, Plant, and Equipment: Property, plant, and equipment, summarized below, is stated at cost.  Depreciation is
provided using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives described below.
_________________________________________________________________________
December 31, 1999~ 1998~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Land and improvements (15-30 years) $^11,278~ $^13,948~
Buildings and improvements (30 years) 113,455~ 132,759~
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures (3-8 years) 184,393~ 239,735~_________________________________________________________________________

309,126~ 386,442~
Allowances for depreciation (214,219) (259,074)_________________________________________________________________________
Totals $^94,907~ $127,368~__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Significant dispositions of property, plant, and equipment in 1999 include the sale-leaseback of a European office building
having a net book value of approximately $9,000,000 at the date of sale (see Note 8).  The remaining decline in net property,
plant, and equipment is due primarily to depreciation expense and write-offs of internal systems no longer in use as the result
of reductions in force and other actions taken to downsize the Company. 
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Other Noncurrent Liabilities: Other noncurrent liabilities of $10,609,000 reflected in the Company’s December 31,
1999 consolidated balance sheet consist of liabilities incurred in connection with a business acquisition in January 1999 (see
Note 15), deferred gain on the sale-leaseback of a European office building (see Note 8), and minority interest in the equity of a
60%-owned subsidiary of the Company (see Note 15). 

Treasury Stock: Treasury stock is accounted for by the cost method.  The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized
the purchase of up to 20,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock in the open market.  As of December 31, 1999, the
Company had purchased approximately 18,800,000 shares for the treasury with the last purchase occurring in 1994.  Further
purchases of stock for the treasury are restricted by terms of the Company’s term loan and revolving credit agreement.  See
Note 8.  Treasury stock activity is presented in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity.  

Revenue Recognition: Revenues from systems sales with no significant post-shipment obligations are recognized as equip-
ment and/or software are shipped, with any post-shipment costs accrued at that time.  Revenues on systems sales with significant
post-shipment obligations, including the production, modification, or customization of software, are recognized by the percent-
age-of-completion method, with progress to completion measured on the basis of completion of milestones, labor costs incurred
currently versus the total estimated cost of performing the contract over its term, or other factors appropriate to the individual
contract of sale.  The total amount of revenues to be earned under contracts accounted for by the percentage-of-completion
method are generally fixed by contractual terms.  The Company regularly reviews its progress on these contracts and revises the
estimated costs of fulfilling its obligations.  Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, it is possible that completion
costs will be further revised on some of these contracts, which could delay revenue recognition and decrease the gross margin to
be earned.  Any losses identified in the review process are recognized in full in the period in which determined.

Revenues from certain contracts with the U.S. government, primarily cost-plus award fee contracts, are recognized monthly as
costs are incurred and fees are earned under the contracts.  

Maintenance and services revenues are recognized ratably over the lives of the maintenance contracts or as services are
performed.  

Effective January 1, 1998, the Company adopted American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 97-2,
Software Revenue Recognition. The Statement requires each element of a software sale arrangement to be separately identified
and accounted for based on the relative fair value of each element.  Revenue cannot be recognized on any element of the sale
arrangement if undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of delivered elements.  Adoption of this new accounting
standard did not significantly affect the Company’s results of operations for 1998 and 1999 as the Company’s revenue recogni-
tion policies have historically been in substantial compliance with the practices required by the new pronouncement.

Billings may not coincide with the recognition of revenue.  Unbilled accounts receivable occur when revenue recognition precedes
billing to the customer, and arise primarily from commercial sales with predetermined billing schedules, U.S. government sales
with billing at the end of a performance period, and U.S. government cost-plus award fee contracts.  Billings in excess of sales
occur when billing to the customer precedes revenue recognition, and arise primarily from maintenance revenue billed in advance
of performance of the maintenance activity and systems revenue recognized on the percentage-of-completion method.

Product Development Costs: The Company capitalizes certain costs of computer software development incurred after
the technological feasibility of the product has been established.  Such capitalized costs are amortized on a straight line basis
over a period of two to five years.  Amortization of these capitalized costs, included in “Cost of revenues - Systems” in the
consolidated statements of operations, amounted to $14,600,000 in 1999, $12,700,000 in 1998, and $10,500,000 in 1997.
Amortization included in discontinued operations amounted to $2,400,000 in 1999, $2,900,000 in 1998, and $3,100,000 in
1997.  The unamortized balance of these capitalized costs, included in “Other assets” in the consolidated balance sheets, totaled
$23,500,000 and $23,000,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Although the Company regularly reviews its capitalized development costs to ensure recognition of any decline in value, it is
possible that for any given product revenues will not materialize in amounts anticipated due to industry conditions that include
intense price and performance competition, or that product lives will be reduced due to shorter product cycles.  Should either of
these events occur, the carrying amount of capitalized development costs would be reduced, producing adverse effects on
systems cost of revenues and results of operations.



Foreign Currency Exchange and Translation: Local currencies are the functional currencies for the Company’s
European subsidiaries.  The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for all other international subsidiaries.  Foreign currency
gains and losses resulting from remeasurement or settlement of receivables and payables denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency, together with gains and losses and fees paid in connection with the Company’s forward exchange
contracts, are included in “Other income (expense) - net” in the consolidated statements of operations.  Net exchange gains
(losses) from continuing operations totaled ($1,300,000) in 1999, $400,000 in 1998, and ($2,200,000) in 1997.  Translation
gains and losses resulting from translation of subsidiaries’ financial statements from the functional currency into dollars for
U.S. reporting purposes and foreign currency gains and losses resulting from remeasurement of intercompany advances of a
long-term investment nature are included in the “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) - cumulative translation
adjustment” component of shareholders’ equity.  

Derivative Financial Instruments: Derivatives utilized by the Company consist of forward exchange contracts and
interest rate swap agreements.  The Company is prohibited by policy from taking derivative positions exceeding its known
balance sheet exposures and from otherwise trading in derivative financial instruments.

The Company conducts business in all major markets outside the U.S., but the most significant of these operations with respect
to currency risk are located in Europe and Asia.  With respect to the currency exposures in these regions, the objective of the
Company is to protect against financial statement volatility arising from changes in exchange rates with respect to amounts
denominated for balance sheet purposes in a currency other than the functional currency of the local entity.  The Company will
therefore enter into forward exchange contracts related to certain balance sheet items, primarily intercompany receivables,
payables, and formalized intercompany debt, when a significant risk has been identified.  Periodic changes in the value of these
contracts offset exchange rate related changes in the financial statement value of these balance sheet items.  Forward exchange
contracts are purchased with maturities reflecting the expected settlement dates of the balance sheet items being hedged, which
are generally less than three months, and only in amounts sufficient to offset possibly significant currency rate related changes
in the recorded values of these balance sheet items.  The Company does not generally hedge the exposures related to other
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities unless a significant risk has been identified.  Forward exchange contracts
are accounted for under the fair value method.  Under this method, realized and unrealized gains and losses on forward
exchange contracts are recognized as offsets to gains and losses resulting from the underlying hedged transactions in the
period in which exchange rates change and are included in “Other income (expense) - net” in the consolidated statements of
operations.  Bank fees charged on the contracts are amortized over the period of the contract.  Gain or loss on termination of a
forward exchange contract is recognized in the period in which the contract is terminated.  In the event of early settlement of a
hedged intercompany asset or liability, the related forward exchange contract gains or losses are recognized in the period in
which exchange rates change.

The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements to reduce the risk of increases in interest rates on certain of its
outstanding floating rate debt.  The Company enters into agreements in which the principal and term of the interest rate swap
match those of the specific debt obligation being hedged.  The Company pays a fixed rate of interest and receives payment based
on a variable rate of interest, and is thus exposed to market risk of potential decreases in interest rates.  Interest rate swap
agreements are accounted for under the accrual method.  Under this method, the differences in amounts paid and received
under interest rate swap agreements are recognized in the period in which the payments and receipts occur and are included in
“Interest expense” in the consolidated statements of operations.  Gain or loss on termination of an interest rate swap agreement
is deferred and amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the remaining term of the original contract life of the
terminated swap agreement.  In the event of early extinguishment of a debt obligation, any realized or unrealized gain or loss
on the related swap agreement is recognized in income coincident with the extinguishment gain or loss.  

Amounts payable to or receivable from counterparties related to derivative financial instruments are included in “Other accrued
expenses” or “Other current assets” in the consolidated balance sheets.  These amounts were not significant at December 31,
1999 or 1998.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133”), requiring companies to recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and to measure the instruments at fair value.  In July 1999, the FASB
delayed the implementation of this new accounting standard to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000 (calendar year 2001
for the Company).  The Company is evaluating the effects of adopting SFAS 133 but does not anticipate a significant impact on
its consolidated operating results or financial position.

See Note 5 for further details of the Company’s derivative financial instruments.
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Stock-Based Compensation Plans: The Company maintains a stock purchase plan and two fixed stock option plans for
the benefit of its employees.

Under the stock purchase plan, employees purchase stock of the Company at 85% of the closing market price of the Company’s
stock as of the last pay date of each calendar month.  No compensation expense is recognized for the difference in price paid by
employees and the fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of purchase.

Under the fixed stock option plans, stock options may be granted to directors and other employees at fair market value or at a
price less than fair market value at the date of grant.  No compensation expense is recognized for options granted at fair market
value.  Expense associated with grants at less than fair market value, equal to the difference in exercise price and fair market
value at the date of grant, is recognized over the vesting period of the options.

In accordance with the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, the Company has provided pro forma basis information to reflect results of operations and earnings per
share had compensation expense been recognized for employee stock purchases and for stock options granted at market value
at date of grant.  See Note 10.

Income Taxes: The provision for income taxes includes federal, international, and state income taxes currently payable or
refundable and income taxes deferred because of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets
and liabilities.  See Note 9.

Net Loss Per Share: Basic loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.
Diluted loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and equivalent common shares outstand-
ing.  Employee stock options are the Company’s only common stock equivalent and are included in the calculation only if
dilutive (see Note 10). 

Comprehensive Income: Effective January 1, 1998, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
130, Reporting Comprehensive Income.  Under this Statement, all nonowner changes in equity during a period are reported as a
component of comprehensive income (loss).  With respect to the Company, such nonowner equity items include foreign currency
translation adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on certain investments in debt and equity securities.  The Company’s
comprehensive losses for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999 are displayed in the Consolidated Statements
of Shareholders’ Equity.  Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at the end of each of these three years consisted of
foreign currency translation adjustments.  There was no income tax effect related to any of the items included in other compre-
hensive income (loss) for any year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999.  See Note 9 for details of the Company’s tax
position, including net operating loss carryforwards, and its policy for reinvestment of subsidiary earnings.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the previously reported consolidated statements of operations
and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 to provide comparability with the current year presentation.

Note 2 — Litigation and Other Risks and Uncertainties.
In addition to those described in Notes 1, 5, 7, 8, and 12, the Company has certain risks related to its business and economic
environment and has extensive ongoing litigation with Intel Corporation, as further described in “Litigation and Other Risks
and Uncertainties” included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on
pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.

Note 3 — Nonrecurring Operating Charges.
The Company recorded nonrecurring operating charges from continuing operations totaling $22,596,000 (including a $7,000,000
inventory write-down recorded as a component of “Cost of revenues - Systems”) in 1999, $15,343,000 in 1998, and $1,095,000 in
1997.  For a complete description of these charges, see “Nonrecurring Operating Charges” included in Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.



42

Note 4 — Discontinued Operations.
On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. operating segment to Mentor Graphics Corporation, a global provider
of electronic hardware and software design solutions and consulting services, for approximately $11,000,000, primarily in the
form of cash received at closing.  The resulting gain on this transaction of $14,384,000 is reflected in “Gain on sale of discontin-
ued operation, net of income taxes” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

The Company’s consolidated statements of operations for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999 have
been restated to reflect VeriBest’s business as a discontinued operation.  Discontinued operations have not been presented
separately in the consolidated balance sheet for December 31, 1998 or in the consolidated statements of cash flows.  Other than
their operating losses for the periods presented, the discontinued operations did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
consolidated cash flow or financial position. 

Summarized financial information for VeriBest is presented below.  For this presentation, VeriBest’s operating and net losses for
each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999 have been adjusted to exclude the impact of intercompany revenue
and expense items.
_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Revenues from unaffiliated customers $ 23,704~ $ 27,783~ $ 28,680~
Operating loss before nonrecurring charges ( 6,460) ^(((12,708) (16,674)
Nonrecurring operating charges 871~ 500~ —~
Net loss $( 7,400) $(12,906) $(16,747)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

VeriBest’s assets and liabilities at December 31, 1998 totaled $15,274,000 and $11,064,000, respectively.

Note 5 — Financial Instruments.
Information related to the Company’s financial instruments, other than cash equivalents and stock investments in less than
50%-owned companies, is summarized below.

Short- and Long-Term Debt: The balance sheet carrying amounts of the Company’s floating rate debt (approximately
$53,000,000 at December 31, 1999), consisting primarily of loans under a revolving credit agreement, mortgages, and a term
loan (see Note 8), approximate fair market values since interest rates on the debt adjust periodically to reflect changes in
market rates of interest.  With the exception of the Australian term loan (see Note 8), the Company is exposed to market risk of
future increases in interest rates on these loans.  The carrying amounts of fixed rate debt approximate fair market values based
on current interest rates for debt of the same remaining maturities and character.

Convertible debenture: As part of the proceeds of the April 1999 sale of its InterCAP subsidiary (see Note 15), the
Company received a $5,797,000 convertible subordinated debenture from Micrografx, Inc. due on March 31, 2002.  The conver-
sion feature allows the Company to convert the debenture into shares of Micrografx common stock in multiples of $500,000 at a
conversion price of $10.  This conversion price may be adjusted, at Micrografx’s option, based on the twenty day average closing
price of Micrografx stock on three reset dates specified in the agreement.  Micrografx also has an option to convert the deben-
ture into shares of their common stock if the twenty day average closing price is at least 120% of the applicable conversion
price.  The Company is unable to estimate the fair value of the conversion option, but does not anticipate conversion of the
debenture by either party in the near term.  Accordingly, at December 31, 1999, the debenture is recorded at its face value of
$5,797,000 and included in “Other assets” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of that date. 

Stock warrant: As part of the proceeds of the October 1999 sale of its VeriBest operating segment (see Note 4), the Company
received a warrant to purchase 500,000 shares of the common stock of Mentor Graphics, Inc. at a price of $15 per share.  The
warrant becomes exercisable on October 31, 2001 and expires on October 31, 2002.  The Company’s estimated value of the
warrant is included in “Investments in affiliates” in the Company’s December 31, 1999 consolidated balance sheet.  This value
was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as of the date of the sale and as such, does not represent the
actual value, if any,  that will be realized upon exercise of the warrant. 
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Forward exchange contracts: Outstanding notional amounts of the Company’s forward exchange contracts were
$808,000 and $7,586,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively, both reflecting a net commitment to purchase curren-
cies.  These notional amounts were determined by translating the foreign currency amounts to dollars at the rates in effect at
each balance sheet date.  They do not necessarily represent amounts to be exchanged between the Company and the counter-
parties to the forward exchange contracts, and as such they do not represent the amount of the Company’s currency related
exposures at those dates.  The amounts potentially subject to risk, arising from the possible inability of the counterparties to
meet the terms of the contracts, are generally limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparties’ obligations exceed
those of the Company.  Net receivables from/payables to counterparties related to forward exchange contracts were not
significant at December 31, 1999 or 1998.  The carrying amounts approximated fair value at those dates due to the short
duration (generally three months or less) of the contracts.

Forward exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 1999 and 1998 relate solely to formalized intercompany loans
between the Company’s European subsidiaries.  As of first quarter 1998, the Company is no longer hedging its U.S. exposures
related to foreign currency denominated intercompany loans.

Based on the terms of outstanding forward exchange contracts and the amount of the related balance sheet exposures at
December 31, 1999, the Company’s results of operations would not be materially affected by a 10% increase or decrease in
exchange rates underlying the contracts and the exposures hedged.  Cash requirements of forward exchange contracts are
limited to receipt of an amount equal to the exchange gain or payment of an amount equal to the exchange loss at the contract
settlement date, and payment of bank fees related to the contracts.  Net cash flow from forward contract activity, consisting of
realized gains and losses from settlement of exposed assets and liabilities at exchange rates in effect at the settlement date
rather than at the time of recording, settlement of the forward contracts purchased to mitigate the exposures, and payment of
bank fees on the forward contracts, was not significant for any year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999.

Interest rate swap agreements: In 1996, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement in the principal
amount of its Australian term loan agreement (approximately $8,100,000 at December 31, 1999).  The agreement is for a
period of approximately six years, and its expiration date coincides with that of the term loan.  Under the agreement, the
Company pays a 9.18% fixed rate of interest and receives payment based on a variable rate of interest.  The weighted average
receive rate of the agreement at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was 5.84% and 6.54%, respectively.  The fair market value of this
interest rate swap agreement at December 31, 1999 was approximately $300,000 ($600,000 at December 31, 1998).  Fair market
value was determined by obtaining a bank quote and represents the amount the Company would pay should the Company’s
obligation under the instrument be transferred to a third party at the reporting date.  Cash requirements of the Company’s
interest rate swap agreement are limited to the differential between the fixed rate paid and the variable rate received.

Note 6 — Supplementary Cash Flow Information.
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net of the effects of business acquisitions and divestitures and nonrecurring operating
charges, in reconciling net loss to net cash used for operations are as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________

Cash Provided By (Used For) Operations
Year Ended December 31, 1999 1998 1997_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable $47,418~ $16,939~ $(25,624)
Inventories 3,994~ 7,580~ (21,296)
Other current assets 5,426~ 8,706~ 9,905~

Increase (decrease) in:
Trade accounts payable (17,194) 2,600~ 11,449~
Accrued compensation and other accrued expenses (11,433) (  2,527) 5,258~
Income taxes payable 1,876~ 878~ (  1,135)
Billings in excess of sales (  3,597) 562~ 7,870~_________________________________________________________________________

Net changes in current assets and liabilities $26,490~ $34,738~ $(13,573)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Cash payments for income taxes totaled $9,300,000, $5,200,000, and $6,100,000 in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively.  Cash
payments for interest in those years totaled $5,700,000, $7,700,000, and $6,400,000, respectively.



Significant noncash investing and financing transactions in 1999 included the acquisition of a business in part for future
obligations totaling approximately $3,300,000 and the sale of a subsidiary of the Company in part for a convertible subordi-
nated debenture with a value of $5,797,000.  See Note 15.  Investing and financing transactions in 1998 that did not require
cash included the sale of assets in part for a deferred installment payment of approximately $20,000,000 (see Note 15).
Investing and financing transactions in 1997 that did not require cash included the sale of two noncore business units of the
Company in part for notes receivable and future royalties totaling $3,950,000. 

Note 7 — Accounts Receivable.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the diversity of the Company’s customer
base.  The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally does not require
collateral.  Historically, the Company has not experienced significant losses related to trade receivables from individual
customers or from groups of customers in any geographic area, with the exception of the 1994 write-off of a $5,500,000 receiv-
able from a Middle Eastern customer.  The Company’s total accounts receivable from Middle Eastern customers approximated
$20,100,000 at December 31, 1999, and $22,900,000 at December 31, 1998.

Revenues from the U.S. government were $149,300,000 in 1999, $166,100,000 in 1998, and $177,100,000 in 1997, representing
approximately 16% of total revenue in all three years.  Accounts receivable from the U.S. government was approximately
$33,300,000 and $55,200,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.  The Company sells to the U.S. government under
long-term contractual arrangements, primarily indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity and cost-plus award fee contracts, and
through commercial sales of products not covered by long-term contracts.  Approximately 52% of the Company’s 1999 federal
government revenues were earned under long-term contracts.  The Company believes its relationship with the federal govern-
ment to be good.  While it is fully anticipated that these contracts will remain in effect through their expiration, the contracts
are subject to termination at the election of the government.  Any loss of a significant government contract would have an
adverse impact on the results of operations of the Company.

Accounts receivable includes unbilled amounts of $64,400,000 and $77,400,000 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.
These amounts include amounts due under long-term contracts of approximately $16,400,000 and $25,000,000 at December
31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 

The Company maintained reserves for uncollectible accounts, included in “Accounts receivable” in the consolidated balance
sheets at December 31, 1999 and 1998, of $16,100,000 and $13,800,000, respectively.

Note 8 — Debt and Leases.
Short- and long-term debt is summarized as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________
December 31, 1999 1998_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Revolving credit agreement and term loan $27,470 $39,461
Australian term loan 8,141 9,963
Long-term mortgages 13,402 20,712
Other secured debt 9,800 9,210
Short-term credit facilities 3,690 3,312
Other 423 555_________________________________________________________________________
Total debt 62,926 83,213
Less amounts payable within one year 11,547 23,718_________________________________________________________________________
Total long-term debt $51,379 $59,495__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Under the Company’s January 1997 six year fixed term loan and revolving credit agreement, as amended, available borrowings
are determined by the amounts of eligible assets of the Company (the “borrowing base”), as defined in the agreement, primarily
accounts receivable, with maximum availability of $100,000,000.  The $25,000,000 term loan portion of the agreement is due at
expiration of the agreement.  Borrowings are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the Company’s assets in the U.S. and
certain international receivables. The rate of interest on all borrowings under the agreement is the greater of 7% or the Norwest
Bank Minnesota National Association base rate of interest (8.5% at December 31, 1999) plus .625%.  The amended agreement
contains provisions which will lower the interest rate upon achievement of sustained profitability by the Company.  The average 
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effective rate of interest for the period of time in 1999 during which the Company had outstanding borrowings under this
agreement was 8.7% (9.1% in 1998).  The agreement requires the Company to pay a facility fee at an annual rate of .15% of the
amount available under the credit line, an unused credit line fee at an annual rate of .25% of the average unused portion of the
revolving credit line, a letter of credit fee at an annual rate of 1.5% of the undrawn amount of all outstanding letters of credit,
and a monthly agency fee.  At December 31, 1999, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $27,470,000, the $25,000,000
term loan portion of which was classified as long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet, and an additional $32,400,000 of
the available credit line was allocated to support the Company’s letters of credit and forward exchange contracts.  As of this
same date, the borrowing base, representing the maximum available credit under the line, was approximately $69,300,000
($68,500,000 at February 29, 2000).

The term loan and revolving credit agreement contains certain financial covenants of the Company, including minimum net
worth, minimum current ratio, and maximum levels of capital expenditures, and restrictive covenants that limit or prevent
various business transactions (including repurchases of the Company’s stock, dividend payments, mergers, acquisitions of or
investments in other businesses, and disposal of assets including individual businesses, subsidiaries, and divisions) and limit or
prevent certain other business changes without approval.  The amended agreement has reduced the Company’s net worth
covenant to $235,000,000 at December 31, 1999, with subsequent reductions to $216,000,000 at March 31, 2000 and
$200,000,000 at June 30, 2000.  Additionally, the amended agreement requires the Company to retain the services of an invest-
ment banking firm to advise the Company regarding potential partnering arrangements and other alternatives for its computer
hardware business. 

In August 1995, the Company entered into a term loan agreement with an Australian bank totaling 35,000,000 Australian
dollars (approximately $23,000,000).  The loan is payable in varying installments through August 2002 and bears interest at the
bank’s variable short-term lending rate, which ranged from 5% to 5.15% in 1999 (4.9% to 5.36% in 1998).  Letters of credit
totaling approximately $8,100,000 are pledged as security under the loan agreement.  During 1996, the Company entered into a
six year interest rate swap agreement in the amount of the term loan to reduce the risk of increases in interest rates, effectively
converting the interest rate on this loan to a fixed rate of 9.58%.  In 1998, the fixed pay rate was lowered to 9.18%.

The Company has two long-term mortgages on certain of its European facilities, payable in varying installments through the
year 2010.  One of the mortgages bears interest at the floating Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“Euribor”) plus 1%.  Prior to
January 1, 1999, interest on this mortgage was based on the Amsterdam Interbank Offering Rate (“AIBOR”).  Rates paid on this
mortgage ranged from 3.9% to 4.6% in 1999 (4.3% to 4.6% in 1998).  The second mortgage, which was entered into in
December 1998, bears interest at the United Kingdom base rate plus 1%.  Rates paid on this mortgage ranged from 6% to 7.25%
in 1999. 

In November 1999, the Company entered into an agreement for the sale and leaseback of its European headquarters office
building in the Netherlands.  The lease has an initial term of ten years with an early termination option after five years.  The
lease is accounted for as an operating lease in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13,
Accounting for Leases. The net book value of the building of approximately $9,000,000 has been removed from the Company’s
books, and the gain realized on the sale of approximately $4,200,000 has been deferred and will be credited to income over the
ten year lease term.  Payments under the lease, which are denominated in Dutch Guilders, approximate $1,200,000 per year
and are included in the future minimum lease payments presented below for the first five years of the lease.  A portion of the
proceeds from the sale was used to pay off the mortgage on the building.  At the date of payment, the outstanding principal on
the mortgage was approximately $4,200,000.  Interest rates paid on this mortgage, which were based on Euribor in 1999 and
AIBOR in 1998, ranged from 3.7% to 4.3% for the period in 1999 during which the mortgage was outstanding and from 4.3% to
4.8% in 1998.

Other secured debt consists of debt to various financial institutions payable in varying installments through 2017 and secured
by certain assets of the Company, including facilities and internally used computer software and equipment.  In March of 1997,
the Company entered into an agreement for the sale and leaseback of one of its facilities.  The amount borrowed totals approxi-
mately $8,300,000 and is payable over a period of 20 years at an implicit rate of interest of 10.7%.  The weighted average
interest rate on this and all other secured debt was approximately 10.5% for 1999 and 11% for 1998.  In February 2000, the
Company entered into a lease termination agreement with the owner of this facility and vacated the premises. 

See Note 5 for discussion of fair values of the Company’s debt and interest rate swap agreements.
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The Company leases various property, plant, and equipment under operating leases as lessee.  Rental expense for operating
leases was $25,100,000 in 1999, $26,600,000 in 1998, and $30,400,000 in 1997.  Subleases and contingent rentals are not signif-
icant.  Future minimum lease payments, by year and in the aggregate, under noncancelable operating leases with initial or
remaining terms of one year or more are as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________

Operating
Lease Commitments_________________________________________________________________________

(In thousands)

2000 $18,800
2001 12,800
2002 9,100
2003 6,100
2004 4,100
Thereafter 21,700_________________________________________________________________________
Total future minimum lease payments $72,600__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Note 9 — Income Taxes.
The components of loss from continuing operations before income taxes are as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

U.S. $(68,150) $ 6,301~ $(43,035)
International (^4,911) (7,029) (  6,455)________________________________________________________________________
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes $(73,061) $( ^728) $(49,490)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Income tax expense consists of the following:
_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Current benefit (expense):
Federal $(1,327) $(3,353) $~1,400~
International (4,128) (2,552) (3,845)_________________________________________________________________________

Total current (5,455) (5,905) (2,445)_________________________________________________________________________
Deferred benefit (expense):

Federal —~ ——~ (1,726)
International (^|^45) (^^|95) 171~_________________________________________________________________________

Total deferred (^|^45) (^|^95) (1,555)_________________________________________________________________________
Total income tax expense $(5,500) $(6,000) $(4,000)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Deferred income taxes included in the Company’s balance sheet reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the carrying amounts for income tax return
purposes.  Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
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_________________________________________________________________________
December 31, 1999~ 1998~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Current Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities):
Inventory reserves $  ~13,066~ $~13,348~
Vacation pay and other employee benefit accruals 5,841~ 5,705~
Other financial statement reserves, primarily

allowances for doubtful accounts and warranty 9,142~ 10,333~
Profit on uncompleted sales contracts (^     806) 3,074~
Other current tax assets and liabilities, net 3,435~ (^1,298)_________________________________________________________________________

30,678~ 31,162~
Less asset valuation allowance (28,445) (28,344)_________________________________________________________________________
Total net current asset   (1) 2,233~ 2,818~_________________________________________________________________________

Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities):
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards:

U.S. federal and state 69,895~ 56,636~
International operations 39,446~ 43,555~

Depreciation (^^1,495) (^8,116)
Capitalized software development costs (^^7,704) (^7,281)
Other noncurrent tax assets and liabilities, net 3,639~ 3,194~_________________________________________________________________________

103,781~ 87,988~
Less asset valuation allowance (106,401) (91,130)_________________________________________________________________________
Total net noncurrent liability (^^2,620) (^3,142)_________________________________________________________________________

Net deferred tax liability $(^^^|387) $(^^|324)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(1) Included in “Other current assets” in the consolidated balance sheets.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, which consists primarily of reserves against the tax benefit of net operating loss
carryforwards, increased by $15,372,000 in 1999 due to increases in deferred tax assets of $6,159,000 arising from changes in
deductible temporary differences and an increase of $9,150,000 in the benefit from net operating loss carryforwards.  If
realized, these reserved tax benefits will be applied to reduce income tax expense in the year of realization.

Net operating loss carryforwards are available to offset future earnings within the time periods specified by law.  At December
31, 1999, the Company had a U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward of approximately $159,000,000 expiring from 2009
through 2020.  International net operating loss carryforwards total approximately $107,000,000 and expire as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________

International
Net Operating Loss

December 31, 1999 Carryforwards_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Expiration:
3 years or less $~21,000
4 to 5 years 16,000
6 to 10 years 3,000
Unlimited carryforward 67,000_________________________________________________________________________
Total $107,000________________________________________________________________________
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Additionally, the Company has $3,500,000 of U.S. alternative minimum tax credit carryforward which has no expiration date.
U.S. research and development tax credit carryforwards of $7,800,000 are available to offset regular tax liability through 2012.

A reconciliation from income tax benefit at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 35% to the Company’s income tax expense for
continuing operations is presented below.  There was no material income tax benefit or expense related to the Company’s
discontinued operation.
_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Income tax benefit at federal statutory rate $^25,571~ $ ~255~ $~17,322~
Alternative minimum tax 453~ (^ 453) —~
Tax effects of international operations, net (10,417) (6,760) (^4,828)
Tax effect of U.S. tax loss carried forward (20,607) 5,107~ (18,019)
Prior year taxes (     762) (2,482) 1,165~
Other - net 262~ (1,667) 360~_________________________________________________________________________
Income tax expense $(^5,500) $(6,000) $(^4,000)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes or tax benefits on the undistributed earnings or losses of its interna-
tional subsidiaries because earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested
indefinitely.  At December 31, 1999, the Company had not provided federal income taxes on earnings of individual international
subsidiaries of approximately $22,000,000.  Should these earnings be distributed in the form of dividends or otherwise, the
Company would be subject to both U.S. income taxes and withholding taxes in the various international jurisdictions.
Determination of the related amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability is not practicable because of the
complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation.  Withholding taxes of approximately $600,000 would be payable if all
previously unremitted earnings as of December 31, 1999 were remitted to the U.S. company.

Note 10 — Stock-Based Compensation Plans.
The Intergraph Corporation 1997 Stock Option Plan was approved by shareholders in May 1997.  Under this plan, the Company
reserved a total of 3,000,000 shares of common stock to grant as options to key employees.  In May 1999, the plan was amended
to increase the number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to the plan by 2,000,000 shares.  Options may
be granted at fair market value or at a price less than fair market value on the date of grant.  Options are not exercisable prior
to twenty four months from the date of grant or later than ten years after the date of grant.  At December 31, 1999, 2,654,937
shares were available for future grants.

The Intergraph Corporation Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan was approved by shareholders in May 1998.  The
Company has reserved a total of 250,000 shares of common stock to grant as options under this plan.  The exercise price of
each option granted is the fair market value on the date of grant.  Options are not exercisable prior to one year from the date of
grant or later than ten years after the date of grant.  Upon approval of this plan, members of the Company’s Board of Directors
who were not otherwise employed by the Company were granted options to purchase 3,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock.  Any new nonemployee director will similarly be granted an option to purchase 3,000 shares of common stock upon his
or her first election to the Board.  At each annual meeting of shareholders, each nonemployee director re-elected to the Board is
granted an option to purchase 1,500 shares of the Company’s common stock.  Options to purchase 4,500 and 12,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock were granted in 1999 and 1998, respectively, under this plan.  At December 31, 1999, 233,500
shares were available for future grants.

Under the 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 3,200,000 shares of common stock were made available for purchase through a
series of five consecutive annual offerings each June beginning June 1, 1995.  In order to purchase stock, each participant may
have up to 10% of his or her pay, not to exceed $25,000 in any offering period, withheld through payroll deductions.  All full
time employees, except members of the Administrative Committee of the Plan, are eligible to participate.  The purchase price of
each share is 85% of the closing market price of the Company’s common stock on the last pay date of each calendar month.
Employees purchased 557,713, 464,230, and 432,263 shares of stock in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively, under the 1995 plan.
At December 31, 1999, 1,201,521 shares were available for future purchases.  The Company’s Board of Directors has approved a
successor plan with substantially the same terms as the 1995 plan which will be voted upon at the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders in May 2000.
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As allowed under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (“SFAS 123”), the Company has elected to apply Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations in accounting for its stock-based plans.  Accordingly, the
Company has recognized no compensation expense for these plans.  Had the Company accounted for its stock-based compen-
sation plans based on the fair value of awards at grant date consistent with the methodology of SFAS 123, the Company’s net
loss and loss per share would have been increased as indicated below.  The effects of applying SFAS 123 on a pro forma basis for
the three year period ended December 31, 1999 are not likely to be representative of the effects on reported pro forma net
income (loss) for future years as options vest over several years and as it is anticipated that additional grants will be made in
future years.

_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31, 1999~ 1998~ 1997~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Net loss As reported $(71,577) $(19,634) $(70,237)
Pro forma $(74,018) $(21,496) $(72,497)

Basic and diluted loss per share As reported $(^^1.46) $(^^^.41) $(^^1.46)
Pro forma $(^^1.51) $(^^^.44) $(^^1.51)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Under the methodology of SFAS 123, the fair value of the Company’s fixed stock options was estimated at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  The multiple option approach was used, with assumptions for expected option
life of 1.38 years after vest date in all three years and 48% expected volatility for the market price of the Company’s stock in
1999 (45% in 1998 and 43% in 1997).  Dividend yield is excluded from the calculation since it is the present policy of the
Company to retain all earnings to finance operations.  Risk free interest rates were determined separately for the grants in each
year and are as follows:
_______________________________________        
Expected Life Risk Free Interest Rates
(in years) 1999 1998 1997_______________________________________    

2.38 5.64% 4.13% ——
3.38 5.73% 4.19% 6.28%
4.38 5.87% 4.28% 6.38%
5.38 6.00% 4.40% 6.34%
6.38 6.07% 4.53% 6.46%______________________________________________________________________________

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable.  In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including expected stock price volatility.  Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because the subjectivity of assumptions can materially affect estimates
of fair value, the Company believes the Black-Scholes model does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair
value of its employee stock options.

Shares issued under the Company’s stock purchase plan were valued at the difference between the market value of the stock
and the discounted purchase price of the shares on the date of purchase.  The date of grant and the date of purchase coincide
for this plan.

The weighted average grant date fair values of options granted to employees during 1999, 1998, and 1997 were $2.49, $2.37,
and $3.66, respectively, under the 1997 and Nonemployee Director stock option plans and $.82, $1.12, and $1.29, respectively,
under the 1995 stock purchase plan. 
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Activity in the Company’s fixed stock option plans for each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999 is summa-
rized as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________

1999 1998 1997__________________     _______________        _______________
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price_________________________________________________________________________
Outstanding at 

beginning of year 3,587,173 $^7.63 2,259,923 $^9.61 1,831,417 $10.38
Granted at fair value 220,500 ^^5.17 1,733,000 ^^5.41 ^|672,250 ^^7.99
Exercised ^ (̂^16,750) ^^1.27 ^^^   —— ^^—— |||(^40,187) ^^8.23
Expired |||||||||||— ^^^— ^ ^^ —— ^ —— |||(^30,000) ^16.00
Forfeited ^ (̂240,627) ^^8.34 ^ (405,750) ^^9.21 |||(173,557) ^10.65_________________________________________________________________________
Outstanding at end of year 3,550,296 $^7.46 3,587,173 $^7.63 2,259,923 $^9.61__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Exercisable at end of year 1,044,111 $10.22 ^|728,171 $10.22 ^|540,922 $^9.62__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Further information relating to stock options outstanding at December  31, 1999 is as follows:
_________________________________________________________________________

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable___________________________________      _____________________
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Prices Number Contractual Life Exercise Price Number Exercise Price_________________________________________________________________________
$ ^5.063^ to  $ ^6.969 1,878,500 ^^^^ 8̂.87 years $  5.36 ^                     — —
$ ^7.00     to  $ ^9.50 841,786 6.37 years ^^8.52 422,976 $^8.87
$ 10.125   to  $ 12.25 830,010 5.60 years ^11.12 621,135 ^11.15_________________________________________________________________________

3,550,296 7.51 years $^7.46 1,044,111 $10.22__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Options exercised during 1999 with a weighted average exercise price of $1.27 per share were granted in 1995 as the result of a
business acquisition in which the Company assumed the total shares and price obligations under the acquired company’s stock
option plans.  As of December 31, 1999, all of the options assumed as a result of this business acquisition have either been
exercised or cancelled.  All option grants during the three year period ended December 31, 1999 were at the fair market value of
the Company’s stock on the date of grant.

Note 11 — Employee Benefit Plans.
The Intergraph Corporation Stock Bonus Plan was established in 1975 to provide retirement benefits to substantially all U.S.
employees.  Effective January 1, 1987, the Company  amended the Plan to qualify it as an employee stock ownership plan
(ESOP).  The Company made contributions to the Plan in amounts determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and
the contributions were funded with Company stock.  Amounts were allocated to the accounts of participants based on compen-
sation.  Benefits are payable to participants subject to the vesting provisions of the Plan.  The Company has not made a
contribution to the Plan since 1991.

In 1990, the Company established the Intergraph Corporation SavingsPlus Plan, an employee savings plan qualified under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, covering substantially all U.S. employees.  Employees can elect to contribute up to
15% of their compensation  to the Plan.  The Company matches 50% of employee contributions up to 6% of each employee’s
compensation.  Cash contributions by the Company to the Plan were $4,143,000, $5,082,000, and $5,148,000, in 1999, 1998, and
1997, respectively.

The Company maintains various retirement benefit plans for employees of its international subsidiaries, primarily defined
contribution plans that cover substantially all employees.  Contributions to the plans are made in cash and are allocated to the
accounts of participants based on compensation.  Benefits are payable based on vesting provisions contained in each plan.
Contributions to the plans were $2,873,000,  $3,110,000, and $3,244,000 in 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively.
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Note 12 — Segment Information.
The Company’s operating segments are Intergraph Computer Systems (“ICS”), Intergraph Public Safety, Inc. (“IPS”), and the
Software and Federal Systems (“Federal”) business (collectively, the Software and Federal businesses form what is termed
“Intergraph”).  On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest operating segment and, accordingly, its operating results are
reflected in “Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes” in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations for
each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999.  A complete description of this transaction and its impact on the
Company’s results of operations and financial position, including summarized financial information for each year in the three
year period ended December 31, 1999, is included in Note 4.

The Company’s reportable segments are strategic business units which are organized by the types of products sold and the
specific markets served.  They are managed separately due to unique technology and marketing strategy resident in each of the
Company’s markets.

ICS supplies high performance Windows NT-based graphics workstations, 3D graphics subsystems, and specialty servers.  IPS
develops, markets, and implements systems for the public safety and utilities industries.  Intergraph supplies software and
solutions, including hardware purchased from ICS, consulting, and services to the process and building and infrastructure indus-
tries and provides services and specialized engineering and information technology to support Federal government programs.

The Company evaluates performance of the operating segments based on revenue and income from operations.  The accounting
policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 1.  Sales among the operating segments, the most
significant of which are sales of hardware products and maintenance from ICS to the other segments, are accounted for under a
transfer pricing policy.  Transfer prices approximate prices that would be charged for the same or similar property to similarly
situated unrelated buyers.  In the U.S., intersegment sales of products and services to be used for internal purposes are charged
at cost.  For international subsidiaries, transfer price is charged on intersegment sales of products and services to be used for
either internal purposes or sale to customers.  

The following table sets forth revenues and operating income (loss) by operating segment for the years ended December 31,
1999 and 1998, together with supplementary information related to depreciation and amortization expense attributable to the
operating segments.
_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31,                                                         1999                          1998_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Revenues:
ICS:

Unaffiliated customers $ 214,476~v $   229,005
Intersegment revenues ~~117,631 218,103_________________________________________________________________________

332,107 447,108_________________________________________________________________________
IPS:

Unaffiliated customers 84,932 87,881
Intersegment revenues 11,333 5,537_________________________________________________________________________

96,265 93,418_________________________________________________________________________
Intergraph Software:

Unaffiliated customers 462,492 520,714
Intersegment revenues 13,860 10,819_________________________________________________________________________

476,352 531,533_________________________________________________________________________
Intergraph Federal:

Unaffiliated customers 152,980 167,407
Intersegment revenues 6,817 4,081_________________________________________________________________________

159,797 171,488_________________________________________________________________________
1,064,521 1,243,547_________________________________________________________________________

Eliminations (149,641)~ (238,540)_________________________________________________________________________
Total revenues $ 914,880 $1,005,007__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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_________________________________________________________________________
Year Ended December 31,                                                         1999                          1998_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands)

Operating income (loss) before nonrecurring charges:

ICS (1) ~~$(44,808) $(71,166)
IPS 10,759~ 6,236~
Intergraph Software ~~9,157~ 13,792~
Intergraph Federal ~~12,371~ (  2,953)
Corporate ~~(39,323) (31,564)_________________________________________________________________________
Total $(51,844) $(85,655)__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(1) ICS’s 1999 operating loss includes a $7,000,000 nonrecurring charge for an  inventory write-down which is included as a 

component of “Cost of revenues - systems” in the consolidated statement of operations.
_________________________________________________________________________
Depreciation and amortization expense:

ICS ~~$  5,239~ $10,314
IPS 5,915~ 5,099
Intergraph Software ~~28,873~ 30,171
Intergraph Federal ~~2,886~ 3,003
Corporate ~~2,180~ 2,294_________________________________________________________________________
Total depreciation and amortization expense from continuing operations $45,093~ $50,881__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Amounts included in the “Corporate” category consist of general corporate expenses, primarily general and administrative
expenses remaining after charges to the operating segments based on segment usage of those services.  Included in these
amounts are legal fees of $18,470,000 and $10,650,000, respectively, for 1999 and 1998.

Significant profit and loss items for 1999 that were not allocated to the segments and not included in the analysis above include
an $8,562,000 charge for an arbitration settlement with Bentley Systems, Inc. (see Note 13), an $11,505,000 gain on the sale of
a subsidiary (see Note 15), and nonrecurring operating charges of $15,596,000 (see Note 3).  Such items for 1998 include gains
on sales of assets of $112,533,000 (see Note 15) and nonrecurring operating charges of $15,343,000 (see Note 3).

The Company does not evaluate performance or allocate resources based on assets and, as such, it does not prepare balance
sheets for its operating segments, other than those of its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Effective January 1, 1999, the Utilities business of Intergraph Software was merged into IPS.  Additionally, in 1999, hardware
maintenance revenues, previously attributed exclusively to ICS, were attributed to the selling segment entities with ICS receiving
transfer price revenue for services provided to other operating segments.  The Company’s 1998 segment information has been
restated to reflect both of these operational changes.

The operating segment information model used for 1998 and 1999 differs significantly from those utilized in prior years, specif-
ically in the institution of a transfer pricing system in 1998 and in the attribution of revenues to its ICS and Software operating
segments in sales transactions where both hardware and software, and perhaps attendant services, are sold to a single
customer.  The Company has found it impractical to restate segment information for years prior to 1998 to reflect the current
reporting model, since such a restatement would involve a transaction-by-transaction analysis. 

Revenues from the U.S. government were $149,300,000 in 1999, $166,100,000 in 1998, and $177,100,000 in 1997, representing
approximately 16% of total revenue in all three years.  The majority of these revenues are attributed to the Federal unit of the
Intergraph operating segment.  The U.S. government was the only customer accounting for more than 10% of consolidated
revenue in each year in the three year period ended December 31, 1999.

International markets, particularly Europe and Asia, continue in importance to the industry and to each of the Company’s operating
segments.  The Company’s operations are subject to and may be adversely affected by a variety of risks inherent in doing business
internationally, such as government policies or restrictions, currency exchange fluctuations, and other factors.  Following is a 
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summary of external revenues and long-lived assets by principal geographic area.  For purposes of this presentation, revenues are
attributed to geographic areas based on customer location.  Long-lived assets include property, plant, and equipment, invest-
ments in affiliates, and other noncurrent assets.  Assets have been allocated to geographic areas based on their physical location.
_________________________________________________________________________

Revenues Long-lived Assets_________________________________________________________________________
1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997_________________________________________________________________________

(In thousands)

United States $438,649 $^|488,908 $^|512,429 $130,762 $139,128 $152,184
Europe 285,548 308,118 345,167 24,194 40,878 41,467
Asia Pacific 98,773 105,860 131,178 14,167 17,975 21,304
Other International 91,910 102,121 106,851 3,878 3,468 4,010_________________________________________________________________________
Total $914,880 $1,005,007 $1,095,625 $173,001 $201,449 $218,965__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Note 13 — Related Party Transactions.
Bentley Systems, Inc.: The Company maintains an equity ownership position in  Bentley Systems, Inc. (“BSI”), the devel-
oper and owner of MicroStation, a software product utilized in many of the Company’s software applications and for which the
Company serves as a nonexclusive distributor.  Under the Company’s distributor agreement with BSI, the Company purchases
MicroStation products for resale to third parties.  The Company’s purchases from BSI totaled $2,978,000 in 1999, $1,339,000 in
1998, and $5,656,000 in 1997.  Net receivables from or payables to BSI at December 31, 1999 and 1998 were insignificant.

In second quarter 1997, the Company received notice of the adverse determination of an arbitration proceeding with BSI.  The
arbitrator’s award against the Company was in the amount of $6,126,000 and is included in “Arbitration settlements” in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 1997.  Approximately $5,835,000 in fees otherwise owed
the Company by BSI were offset against the amount awarded to BSI.   

In first quarter 1999, the Company entered into an arbitration settlement agreement with BSI under which the Company made
payment of $12,000,000 and transferred to BSI ownership of three million of the shares of BSI’s Class A common stock owned by
the Company.  The transferred shares were valued at approximately $3,500,000 on the Company’s books, and the Company’s
investment in BSI (reflected in “Investments in affiliates” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets) was reduced accord-
ingly.  As a result of the settlement, Intergraph’s equity ownership in BSI was reduced from approximately 50% to 33%.
Additionally, the Company had a $1,200,000 net receivable from BSI relating to business conducted prior to January 1, 1999
which was written off in connection with the settlement.  The Company recorded a nonoperating charge to earnings of
$8,562,000 in connection with this settlement, representing the portion of settlement costs not previously accrued.  This charge
is included in “Arbitration settlements” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 1999.  

See “Arbitration Settlements” included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report for further discussion of the Company’s arbitration proceedings and 
business relationship with BSI. 

Carl Zeiss B.V: Carl Zeiss B.V.  (“Carl Zeiss”), a manufacturer of aerial cameras and photogrammetric scanning systems,
has a 40% ownership interest in Z/I Imaging Corporation (“Z/I Imaging”), a 60%-owned and consolidated subsidiary of the
Company which was formed on October 1, 1999.  See Note 15 for a discussion of the formation of Z/I Imaging.  Z/I Imaging and
Carl Zeiss are party to various license, supply, and reseller agreements, under which the two companies sell products and
services to each other.  During the three month period ended December 31, 1999, Z/I Imaging’s inventory purchases from Carl
Zeiss totaled $1,770,000.  Sales to Carl Zeiss during this period were not material.  Z/I Imaging’s net payable to Carl Zeiss at
December 31, 1999 was $2,946,000.

Loan Program for Executive Officers: In order to encourage retention of Company stock by executive officers, the
Company adopted a loan program effective January 1993, under which executive officers could borrow from the Company, on an
unsecured basis, an amount not exceeding (1) the market value of the common stock of the Company owned by any such executive
officer, and/or (2) the net value (market price less exercise price) of exercisable stock options owned by any such executive officer.
Interest was charged on these loans at the prevailing prime rate.  Prior to the April 30, 1998 expiration of the loan program, James
W. Meadlock, Chairman of the Board and former Chief Executive Officer of the Company, was indebted to the Company in the
maximum amount of $6,129,000 under the program.  Mr. Meadlock repaid his loan in full on November 21, 1997.

53



Note 14 — Shareholder Rights Plan.
On August 25, 1993, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan.  As part of this plan, the Board of
Directors declared a distribution of one common stock purchase right (a “Right”) for each share of the Company’s common
stock outstanding on September 7, 1993.  Each Right entitles the holder to purchase from the Company one common share at a
price of $50, subject to adjustment.  The Rights are not exercisable until the occurrence of certain events related to a person or
a group of affiliated or associated persons acquiring, obtaining the right to acquire, or commencing a tender offer or exchange
offer, the consummation of which would result in beneficial ownership by such a person or group of 15% or more of the
outstanding common shares of the Company.  Rights will also become exercisable in the event of certain mergers or an asset
sale involving more than 50% of the Company’s assets or earnings power.  Upon becoming exercisable, each Right will allow
the holder, except the person or group whose action has triggered the exercisability of the Rights, to either buy securities of
Intergraph or securities of the acquiring company, depending on the form of the transaction, having a value of twice the
exercise price of the Rights.  The Rights trade with the Company’s common stock.  The Rights are subject to redemption at the
option of the Board of Directors at a price of $.01 per Right until the occurrence of certain events, and are exchangeable for the
Company’s common stock at the discretion of the Board of Directors under certain circumstances.  The Rights expire on
September 7, 2003.

Note 15 — Acquisitions and Divestitures.
In January 1999, the Company acquired the assets of PID, an Israeli software development company, for $5,655,000.  At closing,
the Company paid $2,180,000 in cash, with the remainder due in varying installments through February 2002.  The accounts
and results of operations of PID have been combined with those of the Company since the date of acquisition using the
purchase method of accounting.  This acquisition did not materially affect the Company’s results of operations for 1999.

In April 1999, the Company sold InterCAP Graphics Systems, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, to Micrografx Inc., a global
provider of enterprise graphics software, for $12,150,000, consisting of $3,853,000 in cash received at closing, deferred
payments received in September and October 1999 totaling $2,500,000, and a $5,797,000 convertible subordinated debenture
due March 2002 (included in “Other assets” in the December 31, 1999 consolidated balance sheet). The resulting gain on this
transaction of $11,505,000 is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 1999.  InterCAP’s revenues and losses for 1998 were $4,660,000 and $1,144,000, respectively, ($3,600,000
and $1,853,000 for 1997).  Assets of the subsidiary at December 31, 1998 totaled $1,550,000. The subsidiary did not have a
material effect on the Company’s results of operations for the period in 1999 prior to its sale.

Effective October 1, 1999, the Company contributed operating and financial assets with a total net book value of approximately
$5,000,000 (including cash of $1,800,000) to Z/I Imaging Corporation, a newly formed corporation which supplies end-to-end
photogrammetry solutions for front-end data collection to mapping related and engineering markets, in exchange for a 60%
ownership interest in the new company.  Additionally, Carl Zeiss B.V. contributed assets and liabilities with a net book value of
approximately $4,000,000 (including cash of $11,732,000) to the new company in exchange for a 40% ownership interest.  Z/I
Imaging’s assets, liabilities and results of operations are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.  Carl
Zeiss’s minority interest in earnings and equity of this subsidiary are immaterial to the Company’s consolidated operating
results and financial position.  See Note 13 for a discussion of transactions between Z/I Imaging and Carl Zeiss during the
fourth quarter of 1999.

See Note 4 for a discussion of the Company’s October 1999 sale of VeriBest, Inc.

The Company filed a legal action in August 1995 seeking to dissolve and wind up its business arrangement with Zydex, Inc., a
company with which it jointly developed its plant design software application (“PDS”), and seeking an order allowing the
Company to continue the business of that arrangement without further responsibility or obligation to Zydex.  In November
1995, Zydex filed a counterclaim against the Company alleging wrongful dissolution of the business relationship and seeking
both sole ownership of PDS and significant compensatory and punitive damages.  In September 1997, the Court issued an order
resolving all disputed issues and requiring the parties to settle, and dismissed the case.  A closing of the final settlement agree-
ment occurred on January 15, 1998.  The final settlement included the purchase by Intergraph of 100% of the common stock of
Zydex for $26,300,000, with $16,000,000 paid at closing of the agreement and the remaining amount payable in 15 equal
monthly installments, including interest.  In March 1998, the Company prepaid in full the remaining amount payable to Zydex.
The former owner of Zydex retains certain rights to use, but not sell or sublicense, PDS products for a period of 15 years follow-
ing the date of closing.  In addition to the purchase price of the common stock, the Company was required to pay additional
royalties to Zydex in the amount of $1,000,000 at closing of the agreement.  These royalties were included in the Company’s
1997 results of operations.  The first quarter 1998 cash payments to Zydex were funded by the Company’s primary lender and 
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by proceeds from the sale of the Company’s Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines.  The Company
accounted for the acquisition as the purchase of  PDS software rights and is amortizing those rights over an estimated useful
life of seven years.  The unamortized balance, approximately $18,800,000 at December 31, 1999, is included in “Other assets” in
the consolidated balance sheet.  PDS is currently the Company’s highest volume software offering, representing approximately
28% of total software sales for 1999.

In March 1998, the Company sold its Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling System product lines to Electronic Data Systems
Corporation and its Unigraphics Solutions, Inc. subsidiary for $105,000,000 in cash.  The Company’s gain on this transaction of
$102,767,000 is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1998 consolidated statement of operations.  Full year 1997 revenues
and operating losses for these product lines were $35,200,000 and $4,100,000, respectively.  Based on 1997 performance, the
Company estimates that the sale of this business resulted in an improvement in its 1998 operating results of approximately
$5,000,000, excluding the impact of the gain on the sale.

In April 1998, the Company sold its printed circuit board manufacturing facility for $16,002,000 in cash.  The Company’s gain
on this transaction of $8,275,000 is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1998 consolidated statement of operations.  The
Company is now outsourcing its printed circuit board needs.  This operational change did not materially impact the Company’s
results of operations in 1998.

In November 1998, the Company sold substantially all of its U.S. manufacturing inventory and assets to SCI Technology Inc.
(“SCI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SCI Systems, Inc., and SCI assumed responsibility for manufacturing of substantially all
of the Company’s hardware products.  The total purchase price was $62,404,000, $42,485,000 of which was received during the
fourth quarter of 1998.  The final purchase price installment of $19,919,000 (included in “Other current assets” in the
December 31, 1998 consolidated balance sheet) was received on January 12, 1999.  The Company’s gain on this transaction of
$1,491,000 is included in “Gains on sales of assets” in the 1998 consolidated statement of operations.  As part of this transac-
tion, SCI retained the option to sell to the Company any inventory included in the initial purchase which had not been utilized
in the manufacture and sale of finished goods within six months of the date of the sale (the “unused inventory”).  On June 30,
1999, SCI exercised this option and sold to the Company unused inventory having a value of approximately $10,200,000 in
exchange for a cash payment of $2,000,000 and a short-term installment note payable in the principal amount of $8,200,000.
This note was paid in three monthly installments concluding October 1, 1999 and bore interest at a rate of 9%.  The Company’s
payments to SCI were funded primarily with existing cash balances.  For a complete description of the SCI transaction and its
impact on operating results and cash flows, see “SCI” included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations on page 19 of this annual report.

Note 16 — Summary of Quarterly Information – Unaudited.
_________________________________________________________________________
Quarter Ended March 31~ June 30~ Sept. 30~ Dec. 31~_________________________________________________________________________
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31, 1999:
Revenues $244,610~ $227,076~ $220,548~ $222,646~
Gross profit 78,926~ 75,420~ 57,585~ 78,004~
Loss from continuing operations (15,475) (^9,648) (43,534) (^9,904)
Net income (loss) (17,558) (12,092) (45,501) 3,574~
Loss from continuing operations per share -

basic and diluted (^^^.32) (^^^.20) (^^^.89) (^^^.20)
Net income (loss) per share - basic and diluted (^^^.36) (^^^.25) (^^^.93) .07~
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted 48,697~ 48,831~ 48,971~ 49,121~

Year ended December 31, 1998:
Revenues $238,913~ $240,567~ $247,089~ $278,438~
Gross profit 75,108~ 73,351~ 74,700~ 87,984~
Income (loss) from continuing operations 54,324~ (17,305) (24,379) (19,368)
Net income (loss) 49,442~ (20,988) (27,173) (20,915)
Income (loss) from continuing operations per share -

basic and diluted 1.13~ (^^^.36) (^^^.50) (^^^.40)
Net income (loss) per share - basic and diluted 1.03~ (^^^.43) (^^^.56) (^^^.43)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted 48,219~ 48,311~ 48,416~ 48,547~__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

55



On October 31, 1999, the Company sold its VeriBest, Inc. operating segment.  Accordingly, the gain on the sale as well as the
results of operations for this operating segment have been excluded from continuing operations for all periods presented.

First quarter 1999 losses included an $.18 per share charge for settlement of the Company’s arbitration proceedings with
Bentley Systems, Inc.  Second quarter 1999 results included a $.24 per share gain on the sale of a subsidiary company and a
$.05 per share nonrecurring operating charge for the resizing of the Company’s European computer hardware sales organiza-
tion.  Third quarter 1999 losses included nonrecurring operating charges of $.43 per share for the cost of actions taken during
the quarter to reduce expenses in the Company’s unprofitable business units and restructure the Company to fully support the
vertical markets in which the Company operates. These actions included eliminating approximately 400 positions worldwide,
consolidating offices, completing the worldwide vertical market alignment of the sales force, and narrowing the focus of the
Company’s ICS business unit to high-end workstations, specialty servers, digital video products and 3D graphics cards.  The
fourth quarter 1999 loss from continuing operations was offset by the $.29 per share gain on the sale of VeriBest.

First quarter 1998 earnings included a $2.13 per share gain on the sale of the Company’s Solid Edge and Engineering Modeling
System product lines and a $.31 per share charge for nonrecurring operating expenses, primarily for employee termination
costs and write-off of certain intangible assets.  Second quarter 1998 losses were reduced by a $.17 per share gain on the sale of
the Company’s printed circuit board manufacturing facility.  Fourth quarter 1998 losses included expenses of approximately
$.14 per share relating to the Company’s transition to outsourcing of its manufacturing operation and a $.04 per share charge
for nonrecurring operating expenses, primarily for employee terminations.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Intergraph Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Intergraph Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1999.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Intergraph Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States.

Birmingham, Alabama
January 27, 2000
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Dividend Policy
The Company has never declared or paid a cash dividend on its common stock.  It is the present policy of the Company’s Board
of Directors to retain all earnings to finance the Company’s operations.  In addition, payment of dividends is restricted by the
Company’s term loan and revolving credit agreement.

Price Range of Common Stock
Since April 1981, Intergraph common stock has traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol INGR.  As of January 31,
2000, there were 49,252,406 shares of common stock outstanding, held by 4,427 shareholders of record.  The following table sets
forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices of the Company’s common stock as reported on The Nasdaq Stock
Market.
________________________________________________________________________

1999 1998
Period High Low High Low________________________________________________________________________

First Quarter $^7  1/4 $4  29/32 $10 3/16 $8 1/4
Second Quarter ^10  1/4 ^6  ^ ^10 9/16 ^7 3/16
Third Quarter ^^7  15/16 ^4  3/8 ^118 5/8 ^5 1/2
Fourth Quarter ^^5  13/16 ^3  3/16 ^117  ^ ^4 11/16________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Harris Trust and Savings Bank
Shareholder Services Division
311 W. Monroe Street, 11th Floor
P. O. Box A3504
Chicago, IL  60690-3504
(312) 360-5116

Corporate Counsel
Lanier Ford Shaver & Payne P.C.
200 West Side Square, Suite 5000
Huntsville, AL  35801

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
1900 AmSouth/Harbert Plaza
Birmingham, AL  35203

Form 10-K
A copy of the Company’s Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is available without charge upon
written request to Shareholder Relations, Intergraph Corporation, Huntsville, AL 35894-0001.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of Intergraph Corporation will be held May 18, 2000, at the Corporate offices in Huntsville, Alabama.
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Intergraph Process & Building Solutions 1-800-260-0246
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Z/I Imaging 1-888-538-0713
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Middle East 971-4-367555
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